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Letter to the Ministers
The Hon David Hodgett MP
Minister for Ports
121 Exhibition Street
Melbourne Victoria 3000
The Hon Michael O’Brien MP
Treasurer
1 Treasury Place
Melbourne Victoria 3000
Dear Ministers,
Port of Melbourne Corporation 2013-14 Annual Report
I have much pleasure in submitting to you the Annual Report of Port of Melbourne Corporation (PoMC) for the period
1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014, in accordance with the provisions of the Transport Integration Act 2010 (Vic) and the
Financial Management Act 1994 (Vic).
Yours sincerely,

Mark Birrell
Chairman
22 August 2014
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Vision, goals and values
Our vision is for the Port of Melbourne to be Australia’s best connected port.
Our goals are focused on achieving the corporate vision and are responsive to PoMC’s charter ensuring a balanced and
sustainable approach to the development and management of the Port of Melbourne. They include:
• Delivering world class port facilities and services
• Driving integrated freight transport outcomes
• Enhancing Australian and international trading activities

• Ensuring sustainable business performance
• Nurturing a shared port-city vision
• Developing talented and committed people

Our values are a shared understanding of what we stand for as an organisation. They describe the things we strive for
with our customers, the community and each other. They include:
• People - respecting diversity, knowledge and wellbeing
• Excellence - being the best we can be
• Responsibility - taking ownership of safety, the environment and economic prosperity
• Collaboration - achieving more by working together

Highlights of 2013-14
Trade

Port development

• Total port trade of 85.4 million revenue tonnes
• Total container throughput of 2.53 million TEU
• Record month for full international container exports
of almost 65,000 TEU in March
• Total of 367,416 new motor vehicles handled

• Total capital expenditure of $140.2 million
• Significant progress on the Port Capacity Project
• Appointment of Victorian International Container
Terminal Limited to operate Melbourne’s third
international container terminal at Webb Dock
• Appointment of Melbourne International RoRo
Automotive Terminal (MIRRAT) as the automotive
terminal operator

Finance
• Operating profit after tax of $72.8 million
• Net assets of $1.7 billion
• Total dividends of $43.7 million paid to the
Victorian Government

Stakeholders
• PoMC hosted a series of customer workshops and
delegations as part of an extensive engagement
program on issues ranging from supply chain
connectivity to port pricing
• There were over one million visits to PoMC’s website
in its first year of operation
• Over 12,000 people joined PoMC staff on guided tours
of the Port of Melbourne
• PoMC’s community sponsorship program helped
support a wide range of eligible community festivals
and initiatives which have a direct connection to the
Port of Melbourne
• Over 6,000 students and community members visited
the Port Education Centre
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Port operations
• Total of 3,076 ship visits
• Redevelopment of the Port Operations Control Centre
• Port of Melbourne became the first port in Australia
to operate as a Vessel Traffic Service (VTS) authority
under Commonwealth accreditation
• Hosted 67 cruise ship visits with around 200,000
passengers and crew
• Launch of PoMC’s patrol vessel, the MV Lonsdale
• Steer Clear boating safety campaign reinforced

Our people
• Good faith bargaining commenced for the next
Enterprise Agreement
• PoMC staff actively participated in a range of
community initiatives including fundraising and
participation in Around the Bay in a Day and the
Corporate Triathlon at Elwood
• There were no reportable injuries to staff

5

From the Chairman

Alongside the prudent strategic management of the
Port of Melbourne which saw a rebound in container
trade and a strong after-tax profit result, the Board
continued to focus on infrastructure delivery for the Port
of Melbourne, particularly as the Port Capacity Project
made the quantum shift from concept to reality by
entering its construction phase in earnest.
In a strong financial performance for a self-funded
business embarking on a landmark infrastructure
delivery program, PoMC recorded an overall profit after
tax of $72.8 million for 2013-14.
There was record investment in port assets and facilities.
The Corporation undertook capital expenditure of $140
million in 2013-14, including works for the Port Capacity
Project, significant wharf remediation, the maintenance
dredging campaign and the launch of PoMC’s new patrol
vessel the MV Lonsdale.
During the year, momentum for the Project was also
underpinned by a series of major announcements which
will inevitably reshape the Australian container and
automotive stevedoring landscape and improve PoMC’s
offering to its customers and the wider logistics sector.
PoMC announced Victorian International Container
Terminal Limited as the successful bidder for the right
to build and operate the new international container
terminal at Webb Dock East. Work on the terminal
will commence in late 2014 and be operational in late
2016, bringing increased competition to the stevedoring
sector.
Similarly, the rights to develop and operate what will
ultimately be Australia’s most advanced automotive
terminal were awarded to Melbourne International
RoRo Automotive Terminal (MIRRAT) which will develop
a facility at Webb Dock West to meet forecast demand
of 600,000 motor vehicles in 2025.
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The Board also welcomed an upturn in PoMC’s two
core trades of containers and new motor vehicles which
returned positive results. Container volumes increased
by nearly 1% to 2.533 million TEU, boosted by the
strong performance of international export containers
which grew by a robust 4.2%. Contributing to the export
container growth was a throughput of 65,000 full
international TEUs in March which is the highest volume
ever recorded. The port also continued to handle over
1,000 new motor vehicles per day on average, showing
growth to a total of 367,000 units.
From this solid platform, the Board is confident that
PoMC is well placed to embark on the historic period
of change ahead following the Victorian Government’s
announcement that it would seek expressions of
interest for a medium term lease of the Port of
Melbourne to help fund the infrastructure program for
Victoria. For its part, the Board is committed to assisting
the preliminary planning and foundation phases of the
transaction.
I would like to thank my fellow Directors for their
valuable contributions throughout the year in Board and
Committee meetings.
On behalf of the Board, I would also like to thank Chief
Executive Officer, Nick Easy, who the Board was pleased
to appoint to the role in early 2014.

Mark Birrell
Chairman
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From the Chief Executive Officer

Having taken up the role of Chief Executive Officer in
February 2014, I have been pleased to work closely
with the Board and PoMC management to deliver
beneficial outcomes for our customers and the Victorian
community.
Importantly, PoMC’s financial result was brought about
through scrutiny of the organisation’s own operating
costs against modest trade growth without curtailing
our investment in port assets and facilities.
With safe navigation the cornerstone of the port’s
operations, the Port of Melbourne became the first
port in Australia to operate as a VTS Authority under
Commonwealth accreditation. PoMC’s commitment
to maritime safety was also boosted by the successful
completion of the redeveloped Port Operations Control
Centre (POCC) which consolidated vessel traffic and
security operations in a single facility following a $3.2
million investment as part of the capital program.
While the POCC oversaw fewer vessel visits calling at
the Port of Melbourne, down by 4.3% to 3,076 visits,
the unambiguous trend is towards the deployment of
larger vessels. Total gross tonnage increased 2.4% in
2013-14 while the average gross tonnage of container
vessels visiting the port increased over 12% to 42,000
gross tons. Indeed, average gross tonnage for container
vessels visiting the Port of Melbourne has increased
by over 25% since the completion of the Channel
Deepening Project.
One of the hallmarks of the year was the growth in
cruise shipping visits to Station Pier which is now
busier than it has ever been in its long 160-year old
history in terms of passenger numbers. During the
year, Melbourne hosted 67 cruise ship visits with over
200,000 passengers and crew with almost 80 vessels
scheduled to visit in the 2014-15 season.

As part of its longstanding commitment to customers,
PoMC actively sought close dialogue in its wide ranging
consultation on the Reference Tariff Schedule which
came into effect on 1 July resulting in overall price
increases of less than 1%. Similarly, PoMC’s stakeholder
engagement with community leaders and organisations
was delivered to foster an improved understanding of
the port’s operations, its future infrastructure needs
and the economic benefits it continues to deliver to
underpin our prosperity through trade.
This work was also supported by a Port Education
Program which attracted over 6,000 students and
community members to the purpose-built Port
Education Centre.
As Australia’s leading container and automotive port,
during the year PoMC was also pleased to host a series
of international guests and delegations as part of
our ongoing engagement with global port and trade
partners which included the ASEAN Committee of
Permanent Representatives, Jiangsu Province, Hakata
Port, German Chamber of Commerce, Mongolian Trade
Mission, University of Texas, Japanese Brewery Orion,
Nanjing Inspection and Quarantine Bureau and the
Secretary-General of the Indian Ocean Rim Association.
I would like to thank the Chairman, Mark Birrell, and
the Board of Directors for their support and strategic
leadership throughout the year and commend the
Executive Management Team and staff of PoMC who
continue to work for the benefit of our customers and
stakeholders.

Nick Easy
Chief Executive Officer
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The Port of Melbourne – overview

The Port of Melbourne is Australia’s largest maritime
hub for containerised and automotive cargo and a key
economic asset supporting the prosperity of thousands
of businesses and communities across Victoria and
south-eastern Australia.

Strategic management
Established on 1 July 2003 to provide for the strategic
management and development of the Port of
Melbourne, PoMC conducts its business operations
within the legislative framework provided for under the
Transport Integration Act 2010 (Vic) (which sets out the
statutory objectives, powers and functions of PoMC) as
well as the Port Management Act 1995 (Vic) and other
relevant legislation.

Historical development
The establishment of a port in Melbourne extends back
almost 180 years to the arrival of John Pascoe Fawkner
aboard the Enterprize in 1835 when he anchored close
to where the Immigration Museum (formerly Customs
House) stands today. Since that time, Melbourne’s
history has been intertwined with the port’s evolution
as a trade gateway.

Trade
Handling around 36% of the nation’s container trade,
the Port of Melbourne is primarily a container port with
containerised trade accounting for over 70% of the
port’s total trade.
With over 3,050 commercial ship visits to the port each
year, the Port of Melbourne handles a total trade volume
of 85.4 million revenue tonnes comprising over 2.5
million TEU and 370,000 new motor vehicles annually.

Port infrastructure
PoMC has invested over $1 billion in marine and
land infrastructure over the last decade. In addition
to the channels, PoMC owns and manages around
510 hectares of port land with 34 commercial berths
contributing to a total berth length of nearly seven
kilometres to handle a diverse range of containerised
and non-containerised cargo.

With growing trade, particularly after the discovery of gold
in the 1850s, the Melbourne Harbor Trust was formed
in 1877 to create an authority for the development and
management of the Port of Melbourne and to foster the
city’s international trade links.

While containers and new motor vehicles comprise the
bulk of PoMC’s total trade, the Port of Melbourne offers
a number of multi-purpose terminals which handle
a variety of non-containerised pack types including
farm equipment and machinery, together with break
bulk commodities such as timber, paper, iron and
steel. The Port of Melbourne also provides specialised
berths for dry cargo including cement, sugar, grain and
gypsum, as well as berths for handling bulk liquids from
petrochemicals to crude oil and molasses.

Today, PoMC is the contemporary successor of that
historical legacy as custodian, developer and strategic
manager of the Port of Melbourne to ensure it
continues to deliver economic benefits to its customers
and the wider community.

PoMC performs a strategic management role including
port planning and infrastructure delivery. Most of the
Port of Melbourne’s daily operations including pilotage,
towage and stevedoring are undertaken by the private
sector.

Port of Melbourne at a glance
• Largest container and automotive port in Australia handling around 36% of the nation’s container trade
•Handles almost 7,000 containers and over 1,000 motor vehicles per day on average
•Containers account for over 70% of total trade
•Over 3,050 ship visits per year
•Over $1 billion invested in port infrastructure over the last decade
•34 commercial berths for all types of cargo
•Total land area under management of around 510 hectares
•Net assets of $1.7 billion
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Shipping and navigation

Customer focus

Modern communication centres located at the Port
Operations Control Centre (Melbourne VTS) and Point
Lonsdale (Lonsdale VTS) coordinate marine operations
around the clock to provide safe and efficient marine
and navigational services. This important service is
supported by a professional asset management team
which maintains channels and navigation aids.

With a trade catchment area covering south-eastern
Australia, PoMC works with its customers to share its
expertise and understanding of the landside transport
connections to benefit their businesses. Based in
Melbourne, PoMC’s commitment to trade development
is also supported by dedicated regional offices in
Tasmania and New South Wales.

Tourism gateway

Community partnerships

PoMC manages the heritage-listed Station Pier as
Victoria’s cruise shipping gateway to accommodate
the growing number of passengers aboard cruise ships
which have increased in both size and number. The
terminal also accommodates TT-Line’s Spirit of Tasmania
passenger ferries and other visiting ships including
Australian and international navy vessels.

Melbourne is a port city with urban communities
bordering the port’s operations and landside links.
Recognising the amenity expectations of these
communities, PoMC works to foster a shared port-city
vision with its neighbours. This work is supported by
an active Port Education Program and sponsorship for
eligible community events and organisations.
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Corporate governance

PoMC is governed by a Board of Directors who set
the strategic direction for the business to achieve
its corporate goals, compliance, risk and legislative
requirements.

Declaration of pecuniary interests

The primary responsibility of PoMC’s Board is to manage
and develop the Port of Melbourne consistent with the
vision statement and transport system objectives as set
out in the Transport Integration Act 2010 (Vic) (TIA).

Ministerial Directions

Accountable to the Minister for Ports, Directors are
appointed pursuant to section 145(1) of the TIA having
regard to the expertise necessary for PoMC to achieve
its objectives and functions. Directors are appointed
on terms and conditions specified in the instrument
of appointment and have overall responsibility for the
governance of PoMC and may exercise the powers
conferred on PoMC.

Business risks

With the aim of achieving best practice, the Board has
developed and endorsed a set of governance principles
which are in line with its responsibilities under the TIA.
As a result, the primary focus of the Board is on:
• setting the strategic direction of PoMC including the
approval and oversight of the corporate plan, annual
operating and capital budgets, port development, risk
management policy and strategy, corporate policies
and all delegations of authority (including financial
delegations) made pursuant to section 170 of the TIA
• having regard to the transport system objectives, the
decision making principles and any relevant statement
of policy principles in carrying out its functions and
exercising its powers
• ensuring accountabilities to the Minister for Ports
and the Treasurer of Victoria under the legislation are
understood by PoMC
• approving capital projects where the total project
value exceeds $5 million (or any other capital projects
of strategic significance)
• monitoring compliance with legislative and regulatory
requirements, ethical standards and external
commitments
• appointing and reviewing the performance of the
Chief Executive Officer
• having regard to the safety and security of the Port of
Melbourne
• encouraging the business of the Port of Melbourne

All Directors and nominated officers have completed a
declaration of pecuniary interests.

During the year, PoMC received no Ministerial Directions
from the Minister for Ports.

The procedures and policies established at Board and
management level are designed to protect PoMC’s
assets and interests, uphold the integrity of its reporting
systems, maintain its operational viability and ensure
compliance with legislative requirements.
PoMC is managed through a comprehensive set of
policies and procedures which are subject to regular
audit review. These include financial reporting,
environmental management, risk management
and internal control policies and procedures.

Details of the number of Board and Committee
meetings, together with the number of meetings
attended by each of the Directors during 2013-14,
are provided on page 15.
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Board of Directors

Mark Birrell, Chairman
Mark Birrell was appointed Chairman of
PoMC on 18 October 2011.
Mark brings a wealth of expertise and
leadership in the areas of infrastructure
development, project management and
finance to Australia’s largest container
and general cargo port.
Mark is the Chairman of Infrastructure
Australia and serves as President of
the Victorian Employers Chamber
of Commerce and Industry. He is
Chairman of Citywide and was the
founding Chairman of Infrastructure
Partnerships Australia.
An experienced company director and
corporate adviser, Mark has served
previously as Chairman of Evans & Peck
Limited and National Leader of the
Infrastructure Group at Minter Ellison
Lawyers.
Mark has a significant public policy
background through his earlier roles as
Victorian Minister for Major Projects
and then Minister for Industry, Science
& Technology. His in-depth knowledge
and strategic understanding of
capital works extended to overseeing
initiatives like the development of
Melbourne’s Docklands and the
‘Agenda 21’ suite of major projects.
Mark holds Bachelor of Economics
and Bachelor of Laws degrees and is
a Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

James Cain,
Deputy Chairman
James Cain was appointed Deputy
Chairman of PoMC on 1 July 2010 and
reappointed on 15 July 2013.
James has an extensive background in
project development management in
property and infrastructure, in both the
public and private sectors.
James’ professional experience
includes 12 years with property and
construction company Lend Lease
in various roles including General
Manager for Victoria, Tasmania and
South Australia, and five years with
the Victorian Government as Executive
Director of Major Projects Victoria, the
Victorian Government’s major capital
works agency.

David Cranwell
David Cranwell was appointed as a
Director of PoMC on 1 July 2003 and
reappointed on 1 July 2006, 2008, 2010
and 15 July 2013.
David is a Partner of Spencer Stuart,
a leading global senior level executive
search and director recruitment
partnership.
Before joining Spencer Stuart, David
spent 11 years in a number of roles
with Mayne Group Ltd, including
Director of Development; CEO Asia
covering China, Thailand, Malaysia,
Singapore and Indonesia; CEO of the
global logistics business; and more
recently, Group General Manager of
Pharmacy Retailing and Distribution.

Since 2006, James has developed his
interests in commercial, infrastructure
and property areas through his own
consulting business.

During his time in the health
sector, David played an active role
serving as President of the National
Pharmaceutical Services Association
and Chairman, Medicines Partnership
of Australia.

James is also Chair of the Industry
Superannuation Property Trust (ISPT). He
was Chair of Port of Hastings Corporation
until September 2010 and was a Director
of Victorian Rail Track (VicTrack) between
April 2008 and July 2010.

David has a Master of Nautical
Science degree from RMIT University,
Melbourne, an MBA from the Graduate
School of Management at Melbourne
University, and qualified as a Master
Mariner Class 1 with ANL.

Board Committee membership:

Board Committee membership:

- Chair, Risk Committee
- Remuneration and People Committee

- Chair, Audit and Finance Committee
- Risk Committee

Board Committee membership:
- Chair, Remuneration and People
Committee
- Audit and Finance Committee
(ex officio member)
- Risk Committee
(ex officio member)
PORT OF MELBOURNE CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2013- 14
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Ingilby Dickson

John Fitzgerald

Jim Marshall

Ingilby Dickson was appointed as a
Director of PoMC on 1 January 2013.

John Fitzgerald was appointed as a
Director of PoMC on 1 January 2013.

Jim Marshall was appointed as a
Director of PoMC on 15 July 2013.

Ingilby joins the PoMC Board having
served as General Manager Supply
Chain and Processing for BlueScope
Steel, commencing with the company
in 2003 as the first external head of the
Transport and Logistics function.

John joins the PoMC Board with
extensive experience in infrastructure
delivery and is the interim Acting
Australian Government Infrastructure
Coordinator. He is also the Independent
Chair of the ACT Government Capital
Metro Project Board, a Director
on the Board of the Barangaroo
Delivery Authority and the Victorian
Funds Management Corporation
and Chair of the NSW Government
Steering Committee for the Sydney
International Convention, Exhibition
and Entertainment Precinct Project.

Jim is a Director of Star Track Express
Holdings and a Director of Sai Chang (a
joint venture between Australia Post and
China Post). He is also a Trustee of the
Australia Post Superannuation Scheme.

Responsible for global supply chain
and logistics across all transport
modes, including the operations in
Australia, NZ, Asia and North America,
Ingilby also oversaw significant safety
improvements across BlueScope’s
Australian business.
Ingilby was appointed to the NSW Road
Freight Advisory Council in 2007 and
was awarded Freight Personality of
the Year at the Australian Freight and
Logistics Industry Awards that same
year. Ingilby is also a Board member for
the Australian Logistics Council.
Prior to his appointment at BlueScope
Steel as Vice President Logistics and
Procurement, Ingilby held senior Supply
Chain and Logistics positions with
Goodman Fielder, Toll, Mayne Nickless
and Hutchison Australia.
Ingilby holds a Bachelor of Business,
Graduate Diploma in Accounting,
Graduate Diploma in Institute of
Directorships and is a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Transport and a
Certified Practicing Accountant.

Board Committee membership:
- Audit and Finance Committee

John has recently been a specialist
advisor to KPMG on infrastructure and
government sectors and his previous
Board positions included Director
on the National Advisory Board of
Infrastructure Partnerships Australia
and Executive Director Department
of Treasury and Finance (Victoria)
Executive Board.

Having served as the Executive
General Manager Postal Services at
Australia Post, Jim oversaw a $3.6
billion business encompassing the
letters, parcels and international mail
businesses as well as the enterprise
sales force. Prior to 2010, he managed
the Mail and Network Division for nine
years and was previously the Group
Manager, National Operations in
Australia Post’s Head Office overseeing
significant change programmes in the
operations of the business.
Jim was also a member of Australia
Post’s Executive Committee, a Director
of Australian Air Express, Chairman of
Post Logistics Australasia and Chairman
of Printsoft Holdings.

With over 30 years of commercial and
financial experience in infrastructure,
John was previously a Deputy Secretary,
Commercial Division, and has held
senior management positions in
banking and finance.
John holds a Master of Public
Infrastructure (Research) from the
University of Melbourne and is a Fellow
of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors and the Institute of Public
Administration Australia (Victoria).

Awarded a Public Service Medal in the
January 2012 Australia Day Honours,
Jim holds a Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor
of Economics and Masters of Business
Administration from the University of
Adelaide.

Board Committee membership:
- Risk Committee

John took leave of absence from
22 April to 30 June 2014.

Board Committee membership:
- Audit and Finance Committee
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Bruce Nicholls

Janice van Reyk

Alice Williams

Bruce Nicholls was appointed as a
Director of PoMC on 1 January 2013.

Janice van Reyk was appointed as a
Director of PoMC on 25 October 2011.

Alice Williams was appointed as a
Director of PoMC on 15 July 2013.

Bruce joins the PoMC Board with an
extensive background in international
trade and investment, having served
as Trade Commissioner for Australia
in India, Germany, Switzerland, China
and Hong Kong, before returning to the
private sector to serve on the boards of
several public companies in Hong Kong
and Australia.

Janice is an experienced non-executive
Director with broad based business
skills gained as a senior executive in
listed industrial companies.

Alice has over 25 years of senior
management and board level experience
in corporate and government sectors
and investment banking, together
with her ongoing work in strategy and
policy development, corporate advisory
and funds management through her
consulting practice.

Bruce has also served as Chairman of
the Royal Automobile Club of Australia,
as a director of Crownhampton
International (HK) Limited, Promet
Petroleum Limited, Goulburn Valley
Water Corporation and Chadcorp
International Limited.
Bruce served as President of the Australia
China Chamber of Commerce & Industry
and as a Trustee of the Committee for
Economic Development of Australia. He
holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree
in Economics and Industrial Relations, a
Diploma in Business and is a Foundation
Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

Board Committee membership:
- Risk Committee
- Remuneration and People Committee

Janice is a non-executive Director of
Melbourne Water and a member of
its Audit Risk and Finance Committee
and its Customer and Service Delivery
Committee; a non-executive Director
of Citywide and a member of its
Audit and Finance Committee and
Remuneration Committee; a member
of the Northern Territory Environment
Protection Authority; an Independent
Member of the Audit Risk and Finance
Committee of Sustainability Victoria;
an Independent Member of the Audit
and Risk Committee of the Salvation
Army; and a non-executive Director of
Melbourne Forum Limited.
Janice has an extensive professional
background in major capital projects,
infrastructure, finance and capital
markets, mergers and acquisitions,
commercial negotiations, risk
management, environmental
management and stakeholder
engagement.
Janice also holds a Master of
Commerce, a Master of Environment
(Hons), Bachelor of Laws (Hons) and a
Bachelor of Arts (Economics). Janice is
a Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors and a Leadership
Victoria Fellow.

Board Committee membership:
- Audit and Finance Committee
- Risk Committee

Having chaired the Australian
Government’s Wheat Marketing
Review Panel, Alice has also been a
consultant to the Australian Competition
& Consumer Commission (ACCC),
International Air Services Commission
and previously served as a parttime Commissioner of the Victorian
Competition and Efficiency Commission.
Formerly a Director of NM Rothschild
and Sons (Australia) Limited, Director
of Strategy and Planning for Ansett
Australia Holdings Limited and a Vice
President at JP Morgan Australia, Alice
has also held management positions
with Elders Finance Group, Hong Kong
Bank of Australia Limited and Citibank
NA in London.
Alice is a non-executive Director on
a range of government, public and
private Boards including Djerriwarrh
Investments, Equity Trustees Ltd,
Victorian Funds Management
Corporation, Guild Group, Defence
Health and Cooper Energy. Alice is
also a Council member of the Cancer
Council of Victoria.
Alice holds a Bachelor of Commerce
from Melbourne University and is a
Chartered Financial Analyst (Virginia,
USA). She is a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors and a
Fellow Certified Practising Accountant.

Board Committee membership:
- Audit and Finance Committee
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Board and Committee meetings
Audit and Finance Committee
The Audit and Finance Committee’s objective is to support the Board by overseeing PoMC’s financial and capital
investment activities, internal and external audit functions, compliance requirements and the effectiveness of the
internal control environment.
Members of the Audit and Finance Committee are PoMC Board Directors and are independent members in accordance
with the requirements of section 2.2(f) of the Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial
Management Act 1994 (Vic).

Remuneration and People Committee
The Remuneration and People Committee’s objective is to support the Board by reviewing and overseeing PoMC’s
policies and processes relating to the development of PoMC’s people and it’s culture and remuneration of executives.

Risk Committee
The Risk Committee’s objective is to support the Board by overseeing PoMC’s risk management framework and
policy to ensure the effectiveness of risk identification and management and compliance with internal guidelines and
external requirements.

Attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings 1 July 2013 - 30 June 2014
Chairman /
Director

Board

Audit and Finance
Committee

Remuneration and
People Committee

Risk Committee

Meetings
eligible to
attend

Meetings
attended

Meetings
eligible to
attend

Meetings
attended

Meetings
eligible to
attend

Meetings
attended

Meetings
eligible to
attend

Meetings
attended

M Birrell

12

12

4

4

2

2

4

4

J Cain

12

11

-

-

2

2

4

4

D Cranwell

12

12

4

4

-

-

4

3

I Dickson

12

11

4

3

-

-

-

-

J Fitzgerald*

9

8

3

3

-

-

-

-

J Marshall

12

12

-

-

-

-

4

4

B Nicholls

12

12

-

-

2

2

4

3

J van Reyk

12

12

4

4

-

-

4

4

A Williams#

12

11

4

4

-

-

1

1

* J Fitzgerald leave of absence 22 April - 30 June 2014.
# A Williams attended the Risk Committee Meeting as an observer.
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Executive Management Team
Nick Easy
Chief Executive Officer
Nick commenced as Chief Executive Officer of Port of Melbourne Corporation (PoMC) in February 2014, providing
leadership for the strategic management of Australia’s largest container and automotive port.
Prior to joining PoMC, Nick was the Chief Executive Officer at the Metropolitan Fire and Emergency Service Board
(MFB) from June 2011 until February 2014 where he was responsible for leading an organisation of 2,300 staff through
a period of sector reform while it continued to deliver emergency services to the Victorian community and beyond.
Before taking up the MFB appointment, Nick had previously served with PoMC and its forerunner for over 13 years
in various senior management positions, most notably as Executive General Manager Port Capacity and Executive
General Manager Channel Deepening Project.
Nick holds a Bachelor of Applied Science Planning and Post-Graduate Diploma in Environmental Management which
underpin his previous roles in local government planning.

Caryn Anderson
Executive General Manager - Commercial
Caryn leads PoMC’s Commercial Division and is responsible for overseeing financial management, port pricing,
planning and analysis, investment evaluation, taxation, insurance, treasury and financial operations, legal services,
Board support, corporate governance arrangements and knowledge management and administration. Caryn is
also responsible for managing PoMC’s property holdings including the strategic development of property assets,
commercial use of land and improvements, together with leasing arrangements and liaison with port tenants.
Having joined PoMC in 2006, Caryn’s widely regarded expertise in trade and strategic infrastructure development
and planning elevated her to the role of Executive General Manager of PoMC’s Business and Planning Division. Caryn
assumed the role of Interim Chief Executive Officer from December 2013 to February 2014 guiding the business
through a period of transition.
In addition to her practical industry experience, Caryn holds formal qualifications in science and postgraduate
qualifications in law and business.

Jeff Bazelmans
Executive General Manager - Business and Planning
Jeff leads a division which directs the strategic considerations of PoMC, formulating the preferred direction for the
organisation and developing and maintaining strategies to deliver the long-term growth, capacity and integration
objectives of the port. As a result, Jeff oversees trade development and marketing, infrastructure and land use planning,
information technology services and port community.
Joining PoMC in 2009, Jeff has almost 30 years’ experience in the public and private sectors in project management,
regulatory enforcement and compliance management drawn from both national and international advisory roles in the
environment sector.
Jeff holds a Doctorate of Philosophy from Monash University and other formal science related qualifications.

Katrina Excell
Executive General Manager
Having joined PoMC in 2008, Katrina has worked in senior finance roles for over a decade and holds a Bachelor of
Commerce and is a Fellow Certified Practicing Accountant (FCPA).
Katrina is currently on maternity leave.
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Keith Gordon
Executive General Manager - Port Operations
Keith oversees a wide range of operational departments including marine and navigation services, environment services, asset
and spatial data management, infrastructure projects, cruise shipping, port security, safety and emergency management.
Before joining PoMC in 2006, Keith held a number of senior management roles including that of Chief Executive Officer
of Geraldton Port Authority. Keith also served as General Manager Ports for Toll Holdings with responsibility for the
ports of Geelong and Hastings for almost a decade.
With over 25 years’ experience in the shipping and logistics industry, Keith has a strong understanding of PoMC’s
commercial and operational requirements and obligations.

Jason Price
Executive General Manager - Port Capacity
Jason is responsible for leading PoMC’s Port Capacity Division. This division oversees the planning, approval,
management and development of PoMC’s short to medium-term container and automotive capacity.
Joining the Executive team in June 2009, Jason has extensive experience in service delivery in complex environments,
with nearly two decades of professional practice in project and contract management.
Before joining PoMC in 2007, firstly as General Manager Projects and subsequently as EGM Corporate Services, Jason
held a number of senior management positions with international building and construction materials supplier Boral
Limited, and construction and mining equipment manufacturer Caterpillar.
Jason holds a Bachelor of Engineering and postgraduate management qualifications.

Organisational structure
Chief Executive Officer
NIck Easy

People and Culture
Corporate Affairs

Business and Planning
Jeff Bazelmans

Commercial
Caryn Anderson

Port Operations
Keith Gordon

Port Capacity
Jason Price

Infrastructure Planning

Finance

Marine and Navigation

Infrastructure Delivery

Strategy

Legal

Assets and Spatial Data

Bid Management

Trade and Marketing

Board Secretariat

Environmental Services

Commercial

Information Technology
Services

Property

Security

Approvals and Compliance

Port Community

Knowledge Management
and Administration

Infrastructure Projects

Communications

Land Use Planning
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Station Pier /
Cruise Shipping
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Our people
PoMC recognises that its record for safe and sustainable infrastructure delivery is reliant on retaining and recruiting
a diverse range of skills to underpin the ongoing success of one of Victoria’s key economic assets.

Staff at 30 June 2014
2014

2013

Male

Female

Total

Male

Female

Total

Full-time permanent

114

48

162

121

52

173

Full-time temporary

34

22

56

34

18

52

6

4

10

4

10

14

154

74

228

159

80

239

Part-time
Totals

People and Culture
Recruitment and retention of specialist expertise for
the delivery of the Port Capacity Project has been a
strong focus for PoMC. Skills across a range of disciplines
including engineering, environmental science and
procurement have been integrated into the Port
Capacity Project team alongside the reassignment of
internal resources for project delivery.

Staff initiatives

Employee relations and statutory
compliance
In May, PoMC formally commenced good faith
bargaining for the next Enterprise Agreement. The
current Enterprise Agreement is due to expire on 23
August 2014.
There was no lost time through industrial relations
activities in 2013-14.

PoMC staff played an active role in customer and
community engagement throughout the year including
weekend community boat tours and discussing safe
boating on Port Phillip Bay at the Melbourne Boat Show.

PoMC complies with all applicable statutory requirements
in relation to employment legislation which is captured
in the Enterprise Agreement. PoMC continues to monitor
the National Employment Standards and Fair Work Act
2009 (Cwlth) to ensure compliance.

To reinforce the important ‘Steer Clear’ boating safety
message, PoMC staff competed in the Around the Bay
in a Day cycling event in October and the Corporate
Triathlon in March.

PoMC continues to foster a culture where it values
human rights and subscribes to the Victorian Charter
of Human Rights and Responsibilities.

Health and safety
As part of its safety culture, PoMC takes a proactive
approach to managing its occupational health and safety
(OH&S) responsibilities and continues to deliver initiatives
and programs designed to prevent safety incidents and
injuries. In 2013-14, there were no reportable PoMC
injuries and no lost time injuries.
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PoMC’s Workplace Relations Policy underpins a
commitment to ensuring that all employees are free to
work in a harmonious and safe environment, adhering
to the PoMC Code of Organisational Values and
Behaviour of Employees and to reject discrimination
and harassment in the workplace.
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Trade performance
Trade summary
Cargo type

Throughput 2013-14

% change on 2012-13

Total trade

85.4 million revenue tonnes

- 0.2%

Containers

2.53 million TEU

+ 0.8%

New motor vehicles

4.9 million revenue tonnes (367,416 units)

+ 0.4%

Liquid bulk

6.5 million revenue tonnes

- 1.0%

Dry bulk

4.1 million revenue tonnes

- 7.7%

Break bulk

4.3 million revenue tonnes

- 7.7%

Total trade

Non-container trade

Total trade through the Port of Melbourne declined
marginally by 0.2% over the previous financial year to
85.4 million revenue tonnes (35.0 million mass tonnes).
Overseas imports decreased 0.8% to 36.5 million revenue
tonnes while overseas exports increased 3.1% to 26.5
million revenue tonnes. Coastal imports decreased
2.8% to 11.1 million revenue tonnes and coastal exports
decreased 2.7% to 11.3 million revenue tonnes.

Total non-containerised trade decreased 2.5% to 24.1
million revenue tonnes (11.3 million mass tonnes). Total
imports of non-containerised cargo decreased 2.8% to
16.8 million revenue tonnes (8.7 million mass tonnes),
and total exports decreased 1.7% to 7.2 million revenue
tonnes (2.6 million mass tonnes).

Container trade
Supported by a strong export performance, total
container throughput increased by 0.8% to 2.53 million
TEU as container volumes rebounded in the second
half of the year. Full container exports increased 1.8%
in 2013-14 including a record monthly throughput of
65,000 full international TEUs in March. Full container
imports recorded a modest decrease of 0.2% while empty
container movements increased 1.4% to 521,000 TEU.
The top ten containerised commodity exports were
cereal grains, miscellaneous manufactures, paperboards
and fibreboards, fruit and vegetables, dairy products,
paper and newsprint, meat, beverages, pulp and
wastepaper and stockfeed.
The top ten containerised commodity imports
were miscellaneous manufactures, furniture,
electrical equipment, clothing, metal manufactures,
machinery, paper and newsprint, fruit and vegetables,
miscellaneous food preparations and vehicle parts.

The main non-containerised commodities exported
were motor vehicles, cereal grains, miscellaneous
manufactures, petroleum products and miscellaneous
food preparations. The main non-containerised
commodity imports were crude oil, motor vehicles,
petroleum products, cement and transport equipment.

New motor vehicles
New motor vehicle trade slowed in the second half of
the year to record an increase of 0.4% overall.
Imports of new motor vehicles increased 2.5% to
3.6 million revenue tonnes (268,000 units) and
exports decreased 4.8% to 1.3 million revenue
tonnes (99,000 units).

Liquid bulk
Liquid bulk trade fluctuated throughout 2013-14 to
record a marginal decrease of 1.0% to 6.5 million
revenue tonnes (5.4 million mass tonnes). Lower
crude oil imports in the latter part of the financial
year contributed to the modest decline.

Dry bulk
Dry bulk trade decreased 7.7% in 2013-14 to 4.1 million
revenue tonnes (3.8 million mass tonnes). The main
imports were cement, gypsum and sugar. The main
exports comprised wheat, barley and scrap metal.
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Overseas trade
The Port of Melbourne’s key international trading partners for containerised and non-containerised exports and
imports are outlined in the table below. (Percentage contribution is shown in brackets).
Exports (country of destination)

Imports (country of origin)

Containerised

Non-containerised

Containerised

Non-containerised

China (24.4)

Saudi Arabia (16.1)

China (39.4)

Japan (16.8)

New Zealand (9.2)

Singapore (12.8)

United States (9.7)

Singapore (11.1)

United States (6.9)

China (10.5)

New Zealand (5.9)

Gabon (10.9)

Japan (5.9)

Indonesia (7.2)

Thailand (5.0)

Thailand (8.5)

Taiwan (4.7)

Oman (6.5)

Malaysia (3.4)

Malaysia (7.5)

Indonesia (4.3)

New Zealand (6.2)

Germany (3.1)

South Korea (6.5)

Thailand (4.0)

United Arab Emirates (6.0)

Japan (2.6)

Indonesia (6.3)

South Korea (4.0)

Thailand (4.5)

Indonesia (2.5)

United States (5.7)

Malaysia (3.6)

Malaysia (4.1)

Italy (2.4)

Germany (4.4)

Vietnam (3.2)

Sudan (3.4)

Taiwan (2.2)

Vietnam (3.3)

Coastal trade
Coastal trade decreased 2.8% to 22.5 million revenue
tonnes (7.8 million mass tonnes) and accounted
for 26.3% of total port trade in 2013-14. Shipments
between Melbourne and Tasmania, which accounted
for 77.7% of this coastal trade, decreased 0.5% to a
total of 17.5 million revenue tonnes (5.1 million mass
tonnes). This ‘Bass Strait’ trade comprised of 56.6%
containerised, 39.1% non-containerised general and
4.3% bulk cargo.

The main export commodities to Tasmania were
miscellaneous manufactures, accompanied passenger
vehicles, miscellaneous food preparations, motor vehicles,
and cereal grains. The main commodities imported from
Tasmania were accompanied passenger vehicles, cement,
miscellaneous food preparations, fruit & vegetables, paper
& newsprint and miscellaneous manufactures.
Mainland coastal trade declined 9.9% to 5.0 million
revenue tonnes (2.7 million mass tonnes) and comprised
primarily containerised cargo which accounted for
53.7% of the trade followed by dry bulk (26.6%), liquid
bulk (10.7%) and 9.0% non-containerised general cargo.

Trade definitions
1. Trade volume is measured in:
• Revenue tonnes – quantity measure based on the greater of weight in mass tonnes and volume in cubic metres
• Mass tonnes – a quantity measure based on the weight of cargo
2. Trade information can be broken down into:
• Overseas trade – trade between Melbourne and non-Australian ports
• Coastal trade – trade between Melbourne and other Australian ports
• Total trade – the sum of both overseas and coastal trade
3. A TEU is a twenty-foot equivalent unit, the standard international measure for container throughput.
4. Gross tonnage (gross tons) is a measure of the total enclosed space or internal capacity of a vessel.
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Finance in brief

PoMC delivered a strong financial performance with
a profit after tax of $72.8 million. This result was
delivered through prudent control over operating costs
in a fluctuating trade environment.

Financial highlights for 2013-14
• $72.8 million operating profit after tax
• $43.7 million in dividends paid
• $76.4 million Port Licence Fee (PLF)
• $140.2 million in capital expenditure
• Net Assets amount to $1.7 billion including
cash assets of $36.2 million
• Total borrowings of $421.1 million and
a gearing ratio of 20.4%

Finance costs
Finance costs of $29.1 million were offset by interest
income of $1.3 million. The resulting net finance charge
of $27.8 million is $1.8 million lower than prior year.

Operating performance
PoMC’s earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) were
$130.1 million for 2013-14. Revenue before interest
income increased by $24.1 million as price increases
of 5.2% were applied and annual trade growth of 0.2%
was recorded.
Operating expenditure increased to $163.4 million from
$143.7 million in 2012-13. This increase was influenced
by a favourable accounting adjustment of $9.8 million
recorded in 2012-13 to reflect a decrease in PoMC’s
liability for the Port of Melbourne Defined Benefit
Superannuation Fund and operational costs of $3.3
million associated with the Port Capacity Project.
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)
DPRL

$m

EBIT

200

Wharfage

180

Cash flow
Net cash inflows from operating activities were
$130.7 million compared with $116.2 million in 201213. Cash outflows for capital expenditure increased by
$73.1 million to $131.3 million in 2013-14 due to the
progression of the Port Capacity Project. Dividends of
$43.7 million were paid to the Victorian Government.
PoMC’s interest cover ratio was 6.2 times in 2013-14
(2012-13: 5.5 times).

$m
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0

0
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2010-2011

2011-2012

2012-2013

2013-2014

(DPRL refers to the Dynon Port Rail Link which was the
subject of an accounting adjustment in 2011-12).
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2009-2010

013

Profit

Expenses

Operating profit after tax of $72.8 million was a
$6.9 million increase on the previous year total
of $65.9 million.

Total expenses (excluding finance charges) were $237.0
million representing an increase of $17.4 million on the
previous year.

Revenue

As noted earlier, this increase was primarily the result of:

Revenue for 2013-14 totalled $368.4 million compared
to $344.8 million in the previous year.

• an accounting adjustment of $(9.8) million to reflect a
decrease in PoMC’s liability for the Port of Melbourne
Defined Benefit Superannuation Fund (the Fund).
As a result of changes to the accounting standards,
movements in the liability of the Fund have been taken
through ‘other comprehensive income’ for 2013-14, and
• operational costs associated with the Port Capacity
Project of $3.3 million.

Trade related revenue from wharfage charges of $239.0
million increased by $12.9 million on the previous year.
Revenue from channel usage fees increased $3.8 million
to $50.4 million and property rental and licence fees
increased to $52.5 million.

Balance sheet

Since the introduction of the Port Licence Fee (PLF) in
2012-13, PoMC has recovered in total $153.0 million in
relation to the PLF, $1.6 million more than the $151.4
million PLF incurred. This PLF over-recovery of 1% has
been factored into PoMC’s pricing for 2014-15
(See page 30).
DPRL
EBIT

As at 30 June 2014, PoMC’s net assets were $1.7 billion.
The balance sheet comprised:

Revenue by segment
Wharfage

Rental

Channel fees

Other

DPRL

$m
400
350
$m

300

350
250

300

200

250

150

200
150

• cash assets of $36.2 million consisting of cash on
hand and term deposits. Deposits earned a weighted
average interest rate of 2.45% at 30 June 2014
• infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets
of $2.5 billion including channels, port land, buildings
and infrastructure assets
• borrowings of $421.1 million with a weighted average
maturity of 4.2 years and fixed rates ranging from
CDP
Other
between 2.73% and 6.99%. Combined with cash
reserves, this resulted in a gearing ratio of 20.4% at
30 June 2014.

Capital expenditure

100
100
50

50

0
2013-2014

PoMC undertook capital expenditure projects totalling
$140.2 million. Expenditure included:

0
2009-2010

2010-2011

2011-2012

2012-2013
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2013-2014

2004-2005

2005-2006

2006/2007

2007/2008

2008/2009

2009/2010

• Port Capacity Project (ongoing)
• Maintenance dredging
• Appleton Dock pile and deck rehabilitation
• 24 Victoria Dock pile rehabilitation
• Station Pier pile rehabilitation

2010/2011
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Financial summary

Year ended 30 June

2014
$m

2013
$m

2012
$m

2011
$m

2010
$m

Operating results
Operating revenue

368.4

344.8

349.3

242.2

218.4

Operating expenses

(237.0)

(219.6)

(172.1)

(149.7)

(145.6)

Finance costs

(29.1)

(31.4)

(35.3)

(38.2)

(36.6)

Operating profit before income tax

102.3

93.8

141.9

54.2

36.2

Income tax benefit (expense)

(29.5)

(27.9)

(42.1)

(15.2)

(8.7)

Operating profit after income tax

72.8

65.9

99.8

39.0

27.5

2,549.2

2,477.2

2,499.9

2,343.5

2,380.2

900.0

868.8

956.4

Financial status
Total assets
Total liabilities

(849.2)

(814.0)

Net assets

1,700.0

1,663.2

1,599.9

1,474.7

1,423.8

Contributed capital and reserves

1,453.1

1,447.8

1,420.9

1,361.2

1,336.7

246.9

215.4

179.0

113.5

87.1

1,700.0

1,663.2

1,599.9

1,474.7

1,423.8

Cash flows from operating activities

130.7

116.1

116.0

106.2

83.3

Cash flows from investing activities

(130.8)

(56.6)

(37.6)

(29.6)

(219.4)

Cash flows from financing activities

(13.7)

(63.7)

(65.4)

(81.4)

80.7

Net cash flow

(13.8)

(4.2)

13.0

(4.8)

(55.4)

140.2

56.8

33.6

26.0

186.1

43.7

29.7

34.4

13.4

67.8

20.4

19.6

22.5

25.1

28.1

Interest cover ratio (times)

6.2

5.5

4.2

3.7

3.3

Leverage ratio (times)

2.2

2.1

2.7

3.1

4.0

Retained profits
Total equity
Cash flows

Capital works
Total expenditure
Dividend
Dividends paid
Financial strength
Gearing ratio (%)
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Port operations

The focus of PoMC’s port operations is to ensure
safe navigation for vessels to and from the Port
of Melbourne, together with the management of
Victoria’s cruise ship gateway at Station Pier and the
safety and security requirements of an urban port.

Ship visits
The Port of Melbourne received a total of 3,076 ship
visits in 2013-14 of which 3,054 were by commercial
vessels including 1,085 container vessel visits. This was
138 or 4.3% fewer than 2012-13, however total gross
tonnage increased 2.4% to 105.1 million gross tons. This
increase in gross tonnage was due to a 7.0% increase
in average vessel size with the average size of visiting
container vessels increasing 12.2% to 41,962 gross tons.

Port Operations Control Centre
The redeveloped Port Operations Control Centre
(POCC) was opened in October following a $3.2 million
investment by PoMC to consolidate commercial vessel
traffic services and security operations in the one
facility. The new POCC is the focal point for supporting
safe navigation across Port Phillip Bay from ‘the Heads’
to Bolte Bridge, together with enhancing security
monitoring of the landside operations.
The Port of Melbourne became the first port in Australia
to operate as a VTS Authority under Commonwealth
accreditation.

Launch of MV Lonsdale
PoMC strengthened its water patrol capability as part
of the ‘Steer Clear’ boating safety campaign with the
deployment of its new hi-tech vessel MV Lonsdale.
Locally berthed and locally crewed in the south of
Port Phillip Bay, the launch of the Lonsdale in March
represents a significant investment in safety and
complements the work of the Tim Muir which was
launched in 2010. The Lonsdale has been fitted with
sophisticated hydrographic survey equipment to
determine seabed depths using a multi-beam echo
sounder. The Lonsdale supported PoMC’s primary
hydrographic survey vessel, the MV John Norgate,
in the most recent maintenance dredging campaign.

‘Steer Clear’ boating safety campaign
PoMC’s ‘Steer Clear’ boating safety campaign continues
to gain greater recognition among stakeholders through
its targeted advertising campaign in electronic and print
media. The campaign was supported by ongoing water
patrols and the work of PoMC staff in engaging with
recreational boat owners and anglers, particularly at the
Melbourne summer and winter boat shows.
Promoting an important message that anchoring in
shipping channels is dangerous and illegal, PoMC staff
have enthusiastically backed the campaign as branded
‘Steer Clear’ ambassadors competing in the Around the
Bay in a Day cycling event and by entering seven teams
in the Corporate Triathlon at Elwood on the shore of
Port Phillip Bay.

Maintenance dredging
PoMC completed maintenance dredging in areas around
the port precinct including Appleton Dock, Swanson Dock,
Yarraville berths and Station Pier. A limited scope of works
was also completed in South Channel.
Minor capital dredging was undertaken at Gellibrand Pier
to maximise draught efficiencies for the liquid bulk trade.

Cruise shipping
Melbourne hosted 67 cruise ship visits with over 200,000
passengers and crew arriving in Melbourne during the
2013-14 season which extended from October to May.
Formerly known as Railway Pier, the heritage-listed
Station Pier marks its 160th anniversary of operation in
September 2014 and is now busier than it has ever been
in terms of passenger numbers.
Almost 80 cruise ships are scheduled to visit Station Pier
in 2014-15 - up from 16 visits a decade ago in 2004-05.
PoMC’s ongoing collaboration with Tourism Victoria,
the City of Melbourne, the City of Port Phillip and the
Melbourne Cruise Ship Committee is part of a joint
effort to ensure Melbourne continues to benefit from
the strong growth in this tourism sector.

The Lonsdale was named in recognition of Captain
William Lonsdale, one of Victoria’s early administrators
who was closely associated with good governance and
the law in the establishment of the young colony.
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Port Capacity Project

The expansion of the Port of Melbourne’s container
and automotive capacity has gained great momentum
during a year of major announcements to promote
competition, efficiency and innovation in the delivery
of this major infrastructure project.

Container terminal operator
Following an eighteen month process which saw a
shortlist of four bidders compete for the rights to build
a new international container terminal at Webb Dock
East, Victorian International Container Terminal Limited
was announced as the successful bidder in May.
Comprising the Philippines-based International
Container Terminal Services Inc. and Anglo Ports Pty Ltd,
the Victorian International Container Terminal Limited
consortium will deliver a third stevedoring service in
Melbourne, promoting increased competition.
With global expertise in terminal development and
operations, the group’s innovative bid addressed the
commercial, environmental, community and amenity
benchmarks established as part of the market offering.
The new terminal will handle over one million TEU
annually and promote off-peak truck movements to
improve the efficiency of Victoria’s transport supply chain.
Work on the new terminal is expected to start later this
year and be completed in late 2016.

Automotive terminal operator
Following a competitive bidding process, the rights to
develop and operate the new terminal were awarded
to Melbourne International RoRo Automotive Terminal
(MIRRAT).
The bid lodged by MIRRAT offered a competitive, valuefor-money solution that ensures the port will continue
to evolve and retain its status as the nation’s leading
automotive port.
The new facility will provide the capacity to meet
forecast demand, with the port set to handle 600,000
vehicles in 2025 rising to 1 million vehicles in 2040.
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Pre-Delivery Inspection
In December, Patrick AutoCare and Prix Car were
announced as the two private sector operators of the
automotive trade’s Pre-Delivery Inspection (PDI) hub after
a competitive bidding process. The PDI hub consolidates
the import pre-delivery service into one location at the
northern end of the Webb Dock precinct and streamlines
delivery by reducing the number of truck journeys
required for new motor vehicles to arrive at dealerships.

Project works
Physical works are well under way with the appointment
of BMD Constructions to deliver the extensive civil
works package which includes internal road links, a
direct link from the port to the West Gate / M1 corridor
and upgrades to the existing Todd Road roundabouts.
The civil works package also includes delivery of the
Project’s buffer strategy including construction of
noise walls and landscaping to improve and protect
residential amenity.
The maritime works package was awarded to McConnell
Dowell to construct the new 920-metre wharf at Webb
Dock West, together with upgraded navigation aids and
berth facilities. These works will also include dredging
approximately 2.3 million cubic metres of material to
deepen the shipping berths at Webb Dock.

Project engagement
PoMC continued to convene the Project Liaison Group
(PLG) which comprises industry, shipping, community
groups, peak bodies and local councils. Headed by
an independent Chairman, the PLG has played an
important role in shaping the buffer management plan
which delivers community infrastructure and amenity in
the vicinity of Webb Dock.
PoMC has also brought together shipping lines,
transport operators and industry representatives
to form the Trade Relocation Industry Group (TRIG)
to manage the necessary trade relocation as some
berths will no longer be available for use during the
construction phase of the project. This enables PoMC
to liaise closely with its customers and stakeholders and
draw on the group’s industry expertise as a proactive
initiative to identify and resolve potential issues to
minimise any inconvenience which might arise from
alternative berthing arrangements.
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Port planning and development

PoMC’s planning and capital investment program are
driven by the need to provide the necessary land and
maritime infrastructure for the Port of Melbourne to
continue to serve as the leading trade gateway for
South-Eastern Australia. In turn, this helps to support
the wider economic prosperity of Victoria by leveraging
the competitive position of the Port of Melbourne.

Port planning
The Port of Melbourne forms an essential part of
Australia’s national and international freight transport
network. This means that a robust understanding of the
landside and waterside logistics issues and opportunities
relating to the movement of trade through the port
is essential to maximising the overall efficiency and
productivity of the network.
PoMC’s strategic planning process considers a wide
range of data including trade forecasts and supply
chain connectivity, particularly with regard to cargo
movements to and from the Port of Melbourne. This
work informs PoMC’s capital investment program for
future development and ongoing integration across
marine, port and land transport systems and activities.
While balancing the need to manage the freight
movements and activities, PoMC remains cognisant
of the need to integrate with the wider Melbourne
transport and development planning frameworks and
current and emerging social expectations. This forms
part of PoMC’s port-city vision which seeks to ensure
that the Port of Melbourne and the city both continue
to grow and plan together in a considered, sustainable
and integrated manner.
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Port projects
In 2013-14, PoMC’s capital investment expenditure of
$140.2 million included the following projects:
• Port Capacity Project
Landside and marine works related to the
redevelopment of Webb Dock for increased container
and automotive capacity.
• Channels and waterways
Maintenance dredging and sweeping works in the port
precinct and South Channel to remove shoaling and
ensure declared depths for safe navigation, together
with the installation of beacons for safe navigation.
• Terminal connectivity
Road construction activities and repair works within the
port precinct, specifically in relation to Swanson and
Victoria Docks, alongside additional works for the port
rail network upgrade.
• Wharf rehabilitation projects
Rehabilitation projects included works at Breakwater
Pier, South Wharf and Yarraville to meet lease
obligations and extend service life, together with fire
protection upgrades at liquid bulk berths.
• Station Pier
Rehabilitation of pile and deck structures at the
heritage-listed pier.
• Information technology upgrades
Data centre upgrades to assist safe navigation and
systems upgrades to reduce maintenance and operating
costs. The works also offer improved management of
downtime risks and assist in disaster recovery.
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Stakeholder engagement

PoMC actively works to engage with its customers and
communities to deliver mutually beneficial outcomes on
issues ranging from pricing to port development. This
work is supported by ongoing industry collaboration and
a vibrant community and education program.

Customer engagement
Working closely with industry stakeholders across
the trade catchment area of south-eastern Australia,
PoMC hosted and supported a wide range of customer
engagement activities involving all parts of the supply
chain including cargo owners, freight forwarders,
shipping lines, customs brokers, stevedores, port
logistics service providers, transport operators, local and
regional councils, industry associations, chambers of
commerce and relevant government agencies.
To facilitate sustainable trade growth through the Port
of Melbourne, these activities included:
• Sponsorship of and participation in industry
conferences and forums
• Reference Tariff Schedule consultation with key
stakeholders including shipping lines, dry bulk
importers, bulk grains exporters, containerised cargo
owners (both import and export), freight forwarders,
automotive industry stakeholders, liquid bulk industry
stakeholders, Bass Strait Shipping operators, Riverina
region stakeholders and Tasmanian stakeholders
including Tasmanian Government agencies
• Hosted regional workshops on trade development,
port freight and supply chain efficiency
• Delivered Melbourne Port System Industry Induction
workshops to increase awareness of the supply chain
and identify opportunities for improvement
• DP World Melbourne Port System Industry Forum
• GS1 Supply Chain efficiency working group discussions
• International Food and Beverage Trade Week
• Port tours for supply chain participants, international
and regional stakeholders
• The Governor of Victoria Export Award 2013
- Judging Panel for Manufacturing Award
PoMC also hosted its annual stakeholder event which
brought together customers, port service providers,
tenants, government agencies and community
representatives. This event acknowledged the
contribution by all commercial and community
stakeholders in marking the collective achievements
of the Port of Melbourne.
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Community engagement
PoMC’s community programs have a shared focus
on honest and transparent engagement about the
operations of the Port of Melbourne while supporting
neighbouring communities.
Supplementing a year-round community program, free
public ‘Port Open Day’ boat tours hosted by PoMC staff
welcomed over 12,000 attendees from across metropolitan
Melbourne to view the operations of Australia’s largest
container and automotive port. Feedback reaffirmed the
positive interest in the Port of Melbourne with 92% of
survey respondents agreeing that the tours increased their
understanding of the port’s operations and facilities.
PoMC’s staff were at the forefront of the organisation’s
community engagement program which supported local
activities including:
• Big Bay Swim from Port Melbourne to Williamstown
• Yarraville Arts Festival, Yarraville
• Seddon Festival, Seddon
• Big West Festival
• Queenscliffe Maritime Weekend
• Point Lonsdale Rip View Swim Classic
• Port Melbourne Lifesaving Club Nippers Program
• Yarraville Community Kindergarten yard redevelopment
• ‘Follow the Orange’ education program
- Nangiloc-Colignan Primary School
• Maribyrnong Community Christmas Lunch for
disadvantaged people
Partnerships and sponsorships marking the port’s role
in the city’s past, present and future included:
• Open House Melbourne
• ‘ Twilight Movies In the Parks’ series
(in partnership with Maribyrnong City Council)
• The Immersery Kitchen, Bar and Raingarden
(part of the Melbourne Food and Wine Festival)
• 5 Short Blasts Participatory Arts experience
(in partnership with the City of Melbourne)
• Multicultural Arts Victoria’s Piers Festival
PoMC also reached a wide audience with a series
of short feature stories about the port’s operations
including hydrographic survey and boating safety which
featured on the television series Coxy’s Big Break in the
summer months.
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Port Education Program

Global engagement

Recognising that international trade and shipping offer
exciting teaching and learning opportunities, the Port
Education Centre (Port Ed) continued to provide a
unique opportunity to see and learn about the port’s
operations through tailored classes specifically designed
to fit with the current AusVELS curriculum.

As an integral part of a global supply chain, PoMC hosted
a series of international delegations and visits from
port, cargo and transport stakeholders including ASEAN
Committee of Permanent Representatives, Jiangsu
Province, Hakata Port, German Chamber of Commerce,
Mongolian Trade Mission, University of Texas, Japanese
Brewery Orion, Nanjing Inspection and Quarantine
Bureau and the Secretary-General of the Indian Ocean
Rim Association.

In its busiest year on record, Port Ed hosted around 6,000
visitors from primary and secondary schools, tertiary
institutions, Probus, Rotary and community groups.
The Port Education Program also benefitted from
PoMC’s involvement with the Victorian Commercial
Teachers Association and the Geography Teachers
Association of Victoria Annual Teachers Conference.

To share knowledge about port planning and
infrastructure development to accommodate growing
trade, PoMC’s global port partnerships benefitted from
staff exchanges and visits with Osaka and Yokohama,
Philadelphia, Shanghai and Tianjin.

To nurture talented young engineers and provide
practical experience, PoMC continued to offers
scholarships to Swinburne University of Technology
second year civil engineering students. Recent recipients
have been engaged to complete work experience with
PoMC’s Asset Management, Infrastructure Projects and
Port Capacity Project teams.

In order of their establishment, PoMC shares formal
relationships with the following international ports.

Maritime engagement

Port of Tianjin, China
Friendship Port since 1980

Working closely with commercial shipping lines,
agents and port service providers, PoMC’s Marine and
Navigation Team also support safe recreational activities
on Port Phillip Bay through the Aquatic Events Advice
service. Liaising with yacht clubs and event organisers, the
service helps support marine activities which take place
within, or close to, the commercial shipping channels and
lanes within the Port of Melbourne waters.

Port of Osaka, Japan
Sister Port since 1974
Port of Oakland, United States
Sister Port since 1976

Port of Yokohama, Japan
Trade Cooperation Port since 1986
Port of Philadelphia, United States
Partner Port since 2002
Port of Shanghai, China
Partner Port since 2006

PoMC also works collaboratively with peak recreational
fishing and boating bodies such as VRFish and the
Boating Industry Association to support safe boating
on Port Phillip Bay, including the Steer Clear campaign.

PORT OF MELBOURNE CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2013- 14

29

Port pricing

As a self-funded business, sustainable financial
performance is a key corporate goal for PoMC to
enable the delivery of high quality facilities and
services for its customers.

Price determination
Prices charged by PoMC for the provision of shipping
channels and infrastructure related to containerised
and motor vehicle cargoes are subject to price
monitoring by the Essential Services Commission (ESC).
In accordance with the ESC’s Price Monitoring
Determination 2010 which applies to 30 June 2015,
PoMC has prepared a Pricing Policy Statement (PPS)
which outlines the principles that guide PoMC in setting
its fees and charges for prescribed services over the
regulatory period. The PPS can be viewed at PoMC’s
website www.portofmelbourne.com

Reference Tariff Schedule 2013-14
The Reference Tariff Schedule details fees and charges
for the facilities and services provided by PoMC and
incorporates recovery of the required Port Licence Fee
(PLF). The schedule is published each year following
an extensive program of consultation with industry
stakeholders.
An overview of the changes to prices which applied
from 1 July 2013 is outlined below:
• wharfage fees for loaded twenty-foot containers
increased by $3.20 to $64.40 per TEU plus GST
• wharfage charges for empty containers increased
by $0.80 to $16.00 per TEU plus GST
• motor vehicle charges increased by an average of
$1.82 per motor vehicle to $37.96 plus GST
• channel fees for vessels visiting the Port of Melbourne
increased on average by 5.2%
• the Channel Deepening Project (CDP) Infrastructure
levy remained at its 2012-13 level.
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Reference Tariff Schedule 2014-15
PoMC undertook an extensive engagement process
with stakeholders from Sydney and the Riverina to
Tasmania during 2013-14 to inform the setting of prices
for 2014-15. Industry was also provided with two pricing
information papers and regular updates regarding trade
and the status of PLF recovery.
Reflecting a competitive trading environment and
scrutiny of its own operational expenses, PoMC limited
increases for 2014-15 to less than 1% overall.
An overview of the changes to prices to apply from
1 July is outlined below:
• wharfage fees for loaded twenty-foot containers
increased by $0.50 to $64.90 per TEU plus GST
• wharfage fees for empty containers increased by
$0.10 to $16.10 per TEU plus GST
• motor vehicle charges increased by an average of
$0.26 per motor vehicle to $38.22 plus GST
• channel fees for vessels visiting the Port of Melbourne
increased on average by 0.7%
• the CDP Infrastructure increase in line with CPI.
Details of PoMC’s Reference Tariff Schedule 2014-15 is
available on PoMC’s website www.portofmelbourne.com
Details of the ESC’s Price Monitoring determination
and Price Monitoring Reports are available on the ESC
website at www.esc.vic.gov.au
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Statement of Corporate Intent
1.1

Corporate overview

Legislative framework
The legislative framework which guides PoMC’s management and development of the Port of Melbourne is outlined
within the following Victorian statutes:
• Transport Integration Act 2010 (Vic) (TIA) which sets out PoMC’s objectives, functions and powers. The TIA requires
PoMC (as a transport body) to have regard to the transport system objectives and decision making principles when
exercising its powers and performing its functions
• Port Management Act 1995 (Vic) (PMA) which establishes the operating framework for the Port of Melbourne and
allocates specific operational and regulatory responsibilities to PoMC
• Marine Safety Act 2010 (Vic) (MSA) which provides the framework for safe marine operations within Victoria.
Vision, goals and values
PoMC recently refreshed its vision, goals and values (Table 1) to ensure continued relevance and alignment within the
evolving internal and external environments. This refresh will enable PoMC to build the right foundation to leverage
future opportunities and respond to any potential or emerging issues.
Table 1 – PoMC corporate vision, goals and values
Vision

Port of Melbourne – to be Australia’s best connected port

Goals

Goal 1 – Delivering world class port facilities and services
Goal 2 – Driving integrated freight transport outcomes
Goal 3 – Enhancing Australian and international trading activities
Goal 4 – Ensuring sustainable business performance
Goal 5 – Nurturing a shared port-city vision
Goal 6 – Developing talented and committed people

Values

People – Respecting diversity, knowledge and wellbeing
Excellence – Being the best we can be
Responsibility – Taking ownership of safety, the environment and economic prosperity
Collaboration – Achieving more by working together

Organisational structure
PoMC is organised into four divisions and the Chief Executive Officer’s (CEO) Office (as shown on page 17), each
of which has been set up to focus on specific areas which collectively contribute to the broader vision, goals and
strategies of the organisation. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is responsible for reporting to the Board, who are in
turn accountable to both the Minister for Ports and Treasurer.
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1.2

Port of Melbourne today

Port overview and assets
The Port of Melbourne is Australia’s largest container, automotive and general cargo port handling around 36% of the
national container trade and is one of the top 60 container ports in the world (based on 2012-13 trade volumes). The
port handles a range of maritime trades including containers, automotive, liquid bulk, dry bulk, general cargo, roll onroll off (Tasmanian passenger/freight and freight only services) and cruise vessels.
PoMC is the strategic and operational manager of the Port of Melbourne and is responsible for approximately 510
hectares of port land (as shown on page 9), 100,000 hectares of declared port waters and 34 commercial wharves
(spread across nine separate port precincts). Currently, more than 3,050 commercial vessels call at the port each year
connecting Melbourne with other Australian ports, along with international locations.
Port trade
During 2013-14, the Port of Melbourne handled an estimated $91.9 billion worth of trade, which comprised of $74.8
billion of overseas trade (actual) and $17.1 billion of coastal trade (estimated). The total trade moved through the port
during 2013-14 was approximately 85 million revenue tonnes (or 35 million mass tonnes) of cargo being handled.
The recent Port of Melbourne trade growth (measured in revenue tonnes) is presented in Figure 1. This shows
consistently strong compounded annual growth rate of 6.2% through the period of 2003-04 to 2007-08 followed by a
5.7% decline in 2008-09 due to the GFC. Post GFC, trade has rebounded, albeit to a softer growth rate of 3.6% since
2008-09. While long term forecasts have been revised to take into account global economic fluctuations, the projection
for trade volumes growth into the foreseeable future is still expected to be moderate.
Figure 1 – Port of Melbourne trade growth (revenue tonnes)
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Port of Melbourne trade is sourced across a trade catchment covering Victoria, eastern South Australia, Tasmania
and southern New South Wales (as outlined in Figure 2). As a result, the Port is a significant economic asset for both
Victoria and the rest of south eastern Australia.
Figure 2 – Port of Melbourne trade catchment

South Australia
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Trade volumes through the Port of Melbourne have generally grown strongly for the last decade and are projected
to continue to grow into the foreseeable future. As strategic manager of the Port of Melbourne, PoMC needs to take
a long-term view of Victoria’s freight task. By 2025, Victorian port international and mainland container volumes are
projected to increase to 4.7 million TEU. This is a 214% increase on the 2.2 million TEU of international and mainland
containers which were handled by the Port of Melbourne in 2013-14.
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1.3

Corporate plan

Corporate objectives
In response to the strategic economic role of the Port of Melbourne, PoMC’s current significant focus on the delivery
of the new port infrastructure and capacity, and continued evolution of the policy and external strategic environment
PoMC has identified the following corporate objectives for 2014-15:
• Objective 1 – delivering critical port infrastructure and capacity – ensuring that the current program of major
infrastructure works being undertaken at the Port of Melbourne, including the Port Capacity Project, are successively
delivered on time and to the agreed budgets and are able to cater for the forecast trade demands
• Objective 2 – responding to ports sector policy evolution – monitoring the evolving Victorian ports sector policy
environment and responding to Government directions and requests with regard to the policy changes which impact
the Port of Melbourne, including providing support for the transaction activities associated with the medium-term
lease of the Port of Melbourne to the private sector
• Objective 3 – ensuring ongoing port operations – continuing to focus on the efficiency and productivity of ongoing
port operations which support the prosperity of the Victorian economy
• Objective 4 – supporting and engaging with port customers – actively engaging with the full range of Port of
Melbourne customers to understand their port and trade needs and the support them in the moving trade through
the Port of Melbourne.
The above corporate objectives, in parallel with PoMC’s corporate vision, goals and values, provide the supporting
framework around which the Corporate Plan has been developed.
Corporate opportunities and challenges
Overall, there are a number of strategic opportunities and challenges for PoMC and the Port of Melbourne. These
need to be understood as they have the potential to influence PoMC’s strategic planning and capacity delivery
considerations. These challenges and opportunities include:
• Port sector policy evolution – the Australian ports sector has recently undergone a significant period of change with
the introduction of new and more integrated stevedoring and supply chain players and the privatisation of other capital
city ports. In addition, the State Government announced on 5 May that the Port of Melbourne will be leased to the
private sector for a medium-term period with an expression of interest process to commence in early 2015. This has the
potential to result in significant changes to the existing policy environment within which Victoria’s ports operate
• Broader economic and climatic conditions – port trade volumes are driven by the broader economic, demographic
and climatic conditions. Imports are influenced by population growth and prosperity while exports principally
by climatic conditions and the strength of the Australian dollar. In both cases, the international context is quite
important and trade volumes can be significantly impacted by currency exchange rates, interest rates, extreme
climate conditions, changes to broad global economic and production conditions
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• Port and freight supply chain competition – within the freight supply chain there is already competition at a number
of different levels, between individual ports, between the individual terminals at each port and between the various
logistics players. These sectors are all currently undergoing change with the introduction of new competitors and
technology, shifting ownership structures and owners, along with changing levels of supply chain vertical integration
• Container shipping industry economics and dynamics – with the sustained Global Financial Crisis (GFC) fallout
(resulting in lower shipping volumes) and impending Panama Canal dimensional changes, the world shipping
industry is currently going through a period of change. As a result, at the Australian level, the industry is moving
towards increased market power of select shipping lines with associated impacts including increases in the use of
alliances for the delivery of shipping services, the potential for reductions in direct port calls and service levels, along
with the cascading down of larger vessels from other international routes
• Port and freight supply chain productivity – the Port of Melbourne is the largest Victorian port and the main State
import and export gateway. The port and wider supply chain productivity is hence extremely important to Victoria’s
economic and social prosperity. This productivity is heavily influenced by a large number of stakeholders, including
Government, industry and community. As such, a ‘whole of supply chain’ focus is needed to ensure an overall
improvement outcome is achieved rather than shifting issues and constraints along the chain
• Port and city growing and planning together – it is important that the planning for both the port and city is
integrated and there is a robust understanding of the mixture of benefits and challenges associated with this close
proximity and integration. This includes an understanding of the liveability, urban realm and commuter transport
(both public and private) requirements of cities, along with the operational and economic requirements of ports and
the wider freight supply chain
• Port competition and financial stability – in order to deliver positive long term trade and economic outcomes,
significant investments in port infrastructure and facilities are required. It is vital that PoMC is able to sustain robust
revenues and profits and reinvest the achieved profits into further capacity and productivity improvements while
balancing sustainable dividend and Port Licence Fee payments to the State Government and the changing role of the
Port of Melbourne with the medium to long term emergence of the Port of Hastings as Victoria’s largest container port.
Corporate planning framework
To enable an effective response to the current and evolving strategic and operational environment, PoMC has
developed an integrated corporate planning framework which maps PoMC’s corporate goals across PoMC’s corporate
delivery focus; publications; major activities, projects and deliverables. Select elements of the corporate planning
framework are presented in Table 2 which appears on the following page.
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Table 2 – Select PoMC corporate planning framework elements
Corporate goals

Corporate delivery
focus

Corporate
publications

Major 2013-14 projects

Goal 1:

• Asset management
• Land management
• Port capacity and
productivity
• Port planning and
development
• Vessel management

• Port Development
Strategy
• Port Operations
Handbook and
Harbour Master’s
Directions

• Continued Government engagement
• Joint Port Operations Simulation
Training
• Maintenance dredging
• New and upgraded container terminal
capacity (Port Capacity Project)
• New automotive terminal capacity
(Port Capacity Project)
• Ongoing port planning and
development

Delivering world
class port facilities
and services

Goal 2:
Driving integrated
freight transport
outcomes
Goal 3:
Enhancing
Australian and
international
trading activities
Goal 4:
Ensuring
sustainable
business
performance

Goal 5:
Nurturing a shared
port-city vision
Goal 6:

• Road, rail and intermodal • 2009 Container
transport planning and
Logistics Supply
development
Chain Study

• Continued Government engagement
• Development of a port system
performance monitoring system
• Improved rail and road interface
operations

• Business intelligence
• Port data collection,
analysis and reporting
• Port marketing
• Trade facilitation and
growth

• Port Customer
Handbook

• Continued industry engagement
• Maintenance of contestable trade
volumes, where practical and possible
• Melbourne Port System Industry
Engagement and Facilitation
• Trade volume maintenance and growth

• Capital investment
• Competitive pricing
position
• Corporate administration
and communications
• Corporate governance
and planning
• Emergency and crisis
management
• Environmental
management
• Financial returns and
stability
• Health and safety
• Risk management
• Security management

• Port Pricing Policy
Statement
• Reference Tariff
Schedule
• Safety and
Environment
Management Plan
• Annual Report

• Essential Services Commission Price
Monitoring Review
• Delivery of compliant port operations
• Delivery of effective corporate
governance, including risk management
• Funding of the Port Capacity Project
• Provision of competitive port pricing
• Provision of transaction related
activities to support the Victorian
Government’s announced lease of the
Port of Melbourne

• Community engagement
• Land use planning
• Port education
• Stakeholder relations

• PoMC website

• Continued community and stakeholder
engagement
• Port of Melbourne Planning Scheme
Review
• Stakeholder Engagement Framework

• Leadership, people and
culture

• Continued staff development
• Continued staff satisfaction surveys

Developing
talented and
committed people
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Strategic initiatives
PoMC has developed a framework for the identification and selection of the key strategic initiatives which are being
undertaken by PoMC and the Port of Melbourne during the forthcoming financial year. For the 2013-14 financial year PoMC
will be undertaking two strategic initiatives based on current planning and recent Government announcements with these
being the Port Capacity Project and the provision of transaction support for the lease of the Port of Melbourne.
• Port Capacity Project
− The $1.6 billion Port Capacity Project, announced in April 2012, will significantly expand the Port of Melbourne’s
container and automotive terminals capacities. The centrepiece for the project is the redevelopment of Webb
Dock and includes the construction of a new international container terminal, a new automotive terminal and
an automotive pre-delivery inspection hub. The new automotive facilities are expected to become progressively
operational from late 2015 and the first container is planned to be handled by the end of 2016
− PoMC is responsible for funding and delivering the Port Capacity Project base infrastructure which consist of site
preparation and early works, roads and services works and maritime works. Building on the base infrastructure
PoMC has competitively selected private sector participants to finance, deliver and operate the superstructure
elements of the new facilities
− The Port Capacity Project also includes the facilitation of additional international container capacity at the
existing Swanson Dock container terminals through a range of equipment and operational improvements.
Combined the project is projected to double the Port of Melbourne international container capacity to an
estimated 5.1 million TEU and substantially increase the automotive capacity to 1 million vehicles per year.
• Port of Melbourne Lease Transaction Support
− On the 5 May the Government announced that the Port of Melbourne would be leased to the private sector for a
medium-term period with an expression of interest process expected to commence in early 2015. While the lease
transaction activities are expected to be undertaken by DTF and/or DTPLI a range of supporting data, information
and input is expected to be required from PoMC. In response an internal PoMC project team is in the process
of being established to support the provision of lease transaction support activities, as and when required by
Government.
Operational projects and deliverables
PoMC will also undertake a range of operational projects, activities and initiatives which support the ongoing
management, planning and development of the Port of Melbourne. The key operational projects and deliverables for
2014-15 include:
• Essential Services Commission Price Monitoring Review – the Essential Services Commission (ESC) is required under
the Port Management Act 1995 (Vic) to review every five years the price regulation of prescribed Victorian port
services. The port services which are currently prescribed are the Port of Melbourne and Shared Channels and Port
of Melbourne container and automotive facilities. PoMC is directly engaging with ESC in regards to this review and
will need to consider and action the outcome of the review
• Joint Port Operations Simulation Training – PoMC is currently working collaboratively with the Australian Maritime
College (AMC) in Launceston to provide simulation based training to PoMC staff and external organisations involved
with movement of commercial vessels within the Port of Melbourne. The simulated training is being designed to
cover a broad range of relevant operational issues including traffic management, communications coordination,
equipment usage, routine and emergency scenarios and compliance with Harbour Masters Directions
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• Maintenance dredging – in 2013 PoMC appointed Boskalis Australia as the Port of Melbourne maintenance dredging
contractor for a 10 year period under an alliance based contract. During 2015 the Port of Melbourne maintenance
dredging activities will focus on sediments located within the Yarra River and the capping of previously dredged
sediments placed in the Port of Melbourne Dredged Material Ground with clean sand
• Melbourne Port System Industry Engagement and Facilitation – PoMC will continue to undertake engagement
with the key industry players involved in the Melbourne Port System to support the delivery of improved port and
landside supply chain logistics activities. This includes industry discussion group facilitation, industry induction
training, hosting market sector discussions, and provision of information to support trade facilitation
• Port of Melbourne Planning Scheme Review – a review of the Port of Melbourne Planning Scheme will be
undertaken by PoMC during 2014-15 in accordance with the requirements of the Planning and Environment Act
1987. Key review activities will include the review of the Port Strategic Statement, current overlay controls and
planning scheme boundary along with consideration of how best to implement the Ports and Environs Advisory
Committee and recent planning policy reform outcomes
• Stakeholder Engagement Framework – PoMC has developed a Stakeholder Engagement Framework and is moving
forward with the ongoing development and implementation of the framework. Key areas of focus for 2014-15 will
include the development of stakeholder engagement plans for key stakeholder segments.
Performance indicators and metrics
PoMC has developed an integrated set of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and metrics which are used to assess the
operation of PoMC and the Port of Melbourne. These KPIs and metric are as follows:
• PoMC KPIs are metrics which are largely or fully under the control of PoMC
• Port of Melbourne performance metrics are metrics for which PoMC has either limited or no control.
The PoMC KPIs and Port of Melbourne performance metrics for 2014-15 through to 2016-17 are presented in Tables 3
and 4 respectively, along with their alignment to PoMC’s corporate goals.
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Table 3 – PoMC Key Performance Indicators (KPI)
PoMC KPI

Definition

Goal 1 – Delivering world class port facilities and services
1. PoMC delivery of the Port Capacity
Percentage of Port Capacity Project deliverables completed
Project according to the approved budget during the period according to the approved budget
Percentage Capital Expenditure Program deliveries
2. PoMC delivery of Capital Expenditure
Program (excluding Port Capacity Project) completed during the period according to the approved
according to the approved budget
budget
3. Percentage of critical PoMC marine
Percentage availability of the DUKC during the period
and navigational system availability –
Declared Under Keel Clearance (DUKC)
4. Percentage of critical PoMC marine and Percentage availability of the Radar during the period
navigational system availability – Radar
5. Percentage of critical PoMC marine
Percentage availability of Navigation aids during the period
and navigational system availability –
Navigation aids
Goal 4 – Ensuring sustainable business performance
6. PoMC return on capital employed
Adjusted net operating profit after tax divided by the
average total capital employed at the end of the period
7. PoMC gearing ratio
Total adjusted borrowings divided by equity at the end of
the period
8. PoMC interest cover ratio
Free funds from operations plus interest expenses divided
by net finance charges
9. PoMC leverage ratio
A measure of PoMC’s ability to meet its debt financing
obligations calculated as: Total adjusted borrowings
divided by (free funds from operations plus net finance
charges plus capitalised lease interest)
Board approval of the annual risk attestation for inclusion
10. PoMC Board approval of annual risk
attestation
in the PoMC Annual Report
11. PoMC reportable environmental
Number of PoMC reportable environmental regulation
regulation breaches
breaches during the period
12. PoMC delivery of environmental
Number of environmental inspections completed during
inspections according to the approved the period. The schedule may be adjusted over time
schedule
subject to management approval requirements
13. Percentage of electricity consumption
Percentage of PoMC’s electricity consumption which is
generated by renewable sources
generated by renewable sources during the period
14. PoMC lost time injury frequency rate
Number of lost time injuries during the period multiplied
by 1 million and divided by the total number of hours
worked during the period
15. Reportable security regulation breaches Number of PoMC reportable security regulation breaches
during the period
Goal 5 – Nurturing a shared port-city vision
16. Execution of all capital works projects
Percentage execution of all Stakeholder Engagement
with Stakeholder Engagement Plans
Plans for capital works projects (as required) identified
within the PoMC enterprise project management system
Goal 6 – Developing talented and committed people
17. Employee satisfaction rating
Employee satisfaction rating within the People Matter
Survey
18. Employee turnover
Number of permanent and contract employees that left
PoMC during the period divided by the average number
of permanent and contract employees for the period
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Reporting
Frequency
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

Annually
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

Annually

Every two
years
Quarterly
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Table 4 – Port of Melbourne performance metrics
Port of Melbourne Metric

Definition

Reporting
Frequency

Goal 1 – Delivering world class port facilities and services
1. Port of Melbourne East Swanson Dock
container berth utilisation rate

Number of TEUs handled during the period divided by
the total berth length of all operational port container
terminals during the period

Quarterly

2. Port of Melbourne West Swanson Dock
container berth utilisation rate

Number of TEU’s handled during the period divided by
the total berth length of all operational port container
terminals during the period

Quarterly

3. Port of Melbourne container berth
occupation rate

Percentage of hours that container vessels are berthed
at all container berths compared to the total operational
hours of all container berths during the period

Quarterly

4. Port of Melbourne and Shared Channels
draught utilisation

Percentage of port vessel visits (for both Port of
Melbourne and Shared Channels) which have registered
draught of greater than 11.6m compared to the total
number of port vessel visits during the period

Quarterly

5. Port of Melbourne container vessels
delayed due to berth unavailability for
on window arrivals

Percentage of container vessels which are delayed due to the Quarterly
berth being unavailable on arrival where the vessel arrived
within their scheduled arrival window during the period

6. Port of Melbourne container vessels
delayed due to berth unavailability for
off window arrivals

Percentage of container vessels which are delayed due to the Quarterly
berth being unavailable on arrival where the vessel arrived
outside their scheduled arrival window during the period

Goal 2 – Driving integrated freight transport outcomes
7. Port of Melbourne container truck
utilisation

Number of TEUs handled during the period divided by the Annually
number of container truck visits during the period

8. Port of Melbourne rail throughput

Percentage of total port trade volume (measured in mass
tonnes) which is moved to or from the port using rail
terminals located within the Port of Melbourne or Dynon

Quarterly

Goal 3 – Enhancing Australian and international trading activities
9. Port of Melbourne trade volume

Port of Melbourne trade volume (in revenue tonnes) for
the period

Quarterly

10. Port of Melbourne rolling annual trade
growth

Percentage increase in the Port of Melbourne trade
volume (in revenue tonnes) for the 12 months ending the
period compared to the previous 12 month period

Quarterly

11. Port of Melbourne container trade
volume

Port of Melbourne containerised trade volume (in TEU)
for the period

Quarterly

12. Port of Melbourne automotive trade
volume

Port of Melbourne automotive trade volume (in revenue
tonnes) for the period

Quarterly

13. Port of Melbourne container market
share

Percentage Port of Melbourne containerised trade market Quarterly
share (in TEU) compared to the five major capital city
ports (Port of Melbourne, Port Botany, Port of Brisbane,
Flinders Port and Port of Fremantle) during the period

14. Port of Melbourne commercial vessel
visits

Number of commercial vessels subject to PoMC charges
during the period

Quarterly

Goal 4 – Ensuring sustainable business performance
15. Port of Melbourne reportable
environmental regulation breaches

Number of Port of Melbourne reportable environmental
regulation breaches during the period

Quarterly

16. Port of Melbourne reportable safety
and security regulation breaches

Number of Port of Melbourne reportable safety and
security regulation breaches during the period

Quarterly
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Abbreviations
The following abbreviations have been used within this document:
ACCC

Australian Competition and Consumer Commission

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CPI

Consumer Price Index

DSDBI

Department of State Development, Business and Innovation

DTPLI

Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure

EBITDA

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation

ELA

Enterprise Labour Agreement

ESC

Essential Services Commission

DTF

Department of Treasury and Finance

FAL

Financial Accommodation Levy

FTE

Full Time Equivalent [employment]

GFC

Global Financial Crisis

GDP

Gross Domestic Product

ITS

Information Technology Services

KPI

Key Performance Indicators

MSA

Marine Safety Act 2010 (Vic)

NOPATD

Net Operating Profit After Tax and Dividends

PLF

Port Licence Fee

PMA

Port Management Act 1995 (Vic)

PoMC

Port of Melbourne Corporation

PPS

Pricing Policy Statement

SEMP

Safety and Environmental Management Plan

WACC

Weighted Average Cost of Capital

TCV

Treasury Corporation of Victoria

TEU

Twenty foot Equivalent Unit

TIA

Transport Integration Act 2010 (Vic)
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Additional information

Transport Integration Act 2010 (Vic)
The Transport Integration Act 2010 (Vic) (TIA) commenced on 1 July 2010. Its purpose is to create a new framework
for the provision of an integrated and sustainable transport system in Victoria consistent with the vision statement
contained in section 6 which reads:
‘The Parliament recognises the aspirations of Victorians for an integrated and sustainable transport system that
contributes to an inclusive, prosperous and environmentally responsible State’
PoMC is defined as a ‘transport body’ under the TIA.
Under section 24 of the TIA, PoMC is required to have regard to the ‘transport system objectives’, ‘decision-making
principles’ and any applicable ‘specified policy principles’ when performing its functions or exercising its
powers under any ‘transport legislation’. Transport legislation includes the Port Management Act 1995 (Vic) and the
Marine Safety Act 2010 (Vic).
The transport system objectives provide for:
• Social and economic inclusion
• Economic prosperity
• Environmental sustainability
• Integration of transport and land use
• Efficiency, coordination and reliability
• Safety, health and wellbeing
The decision making principles provide for:
• Integrated decision-making
• Triple bottom line assessment
• Equity
• Transport system user perspective
• The precautionary principle
• Stakeholder engagement and community participation
• Transparency
Section 141D: Object
The primary object of PoMC is to manage and develop the port of Melbourne consistent with the vision statement
and the transport system objectives.
The primary object includes:
a. to ensure, in collaboration with relevant responsible bodies, that the port of Melbourne is effectively integrated with
the transport system and other systems of infrastructure in the State;
b. to facilitate, in collaboration with relevant responsible bodies, the sustainable growth of trade through the port of
Melbourne;
c. to ensure that essential port services of the port of Melbourne are available and cost effective;
d. to establish and manage channels in port of Melbourne waters for use on a fair and reasonable basis.
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Section 141E: Functions
The functions of PoMC are to:
a. plan for the development and operation of the port of Melbourne;
b. provide land, waters and infrastructure necessary for the development and operation of the port of Melbourne;
c. develop, or enable and control the development by others of, the whole or any part of the port of Melbourne;
d. manage, or enable and control the management by others of, the whole or any part of the port of Melbourne;
e. provide, or enable and control the provision by others of, services for the operation of the port of Melbourne;
f. promote and market the port of Melbourne;
g. facilitate the integration of infrastructure and logistics systems in the port of Melbourne with the transport system
and other relevant systems outside the port of Melbourne;
h. manage and, in accordance with standards developed by the Director, Transport Safety, to dredge and maintain
channels in port of Melbourne waters;
i. provide and maintain, in accordance with the standards developed by the Director, Transport Safety, navigation aids
in connection with navigation in port of Melbourne waters;
j. generally direct and control, in accordance with the Marine Safety Act 2010 (Vic), the movement of vessels in port of
Melbourne waters;
k. perform functions in accordance with a direction given by the Minister under section 141H of the Act;
l. perform any other functions or duties conferred on PoMC by any other Act or any regulations under any other Act.
In performing its functions, PoMC must:
a. carry out its functions consistently with State policies and strategies for the development of the Victorian port and
freight networks; and
b. to the extent that it is possible to do so consistently with paragraph (a) above, operate in a commercially sound
manner having regard to:
i. 	the benefits of increased competition between persons and bodies that provide services related to the
operation of the port of Melbourne;
ii. 	 the persons living or working in the immediate neighbourhood of the port of Melbourne;
iii. 	the need to conduct research and collect information relating to the performance of the functions and the
operation of the port of Melbourne so as to enable PoMC to meet its primary object;
iv. the need to deal efficiently with any complaints relating to the performance of its functions.
Section 152: Powers
As a ‘transport corporation’ under the Act, PoMC has power to do all things that are necessary or convenient
to be done for or in connection with, or as incidental to, the achievement of its object and the performance of
its functions.
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Significant legislative changes
Navigation Act 2012 (Cwlth)
The Navigation Act 2012 (Cwlth) commenced on 1 July 2013, replacing the Navigation Act of 1912. This Act is the
primary legislative means to regulate international ship and seafarer safety, shipping aspects of protecting the marine
environment and the actions of seafarers in Australian waters.
It also establishes the Australian Maritime Safety Authority (AMSA) as the competent authority for vessel traffic
services in Australia. On 11 April 2014, AMSA issued a Vessel Traffic Services Instrument of Authority to the Port of
Melbourne Corporation, making it an authorised VTS Authority for the port of Melbourne.
Customs and Auscheck Legislation Amendment (Organised Crime and Other Measures) Act 2013 (Cwlth)
The Customs and Auscheck Legislation Amendment (Organised Crime and Other Measures) Act 2013 (Cwlth) creates
new obligations on ‘cargo terminal operators’ that applied from 28 November 2013. Port of Melbourne Corporation
is considered a cargo terminal operator with respect to our common user terminals, and must comply with the Act’s
requirements regarding security of premises and mandatory reporting.
Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012 (Vic)
The Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012 (Vic) introduced a new property-based levy from 1 July 2013, replacing the
insurance-based levy. The new levy is payable on PoMC-owned land or land that PoMC leases or licenses from the
Crown, and the proceeds contribute to funding for the Metropolitan Fire Brigade and Country Fire Authority.

National Competition Policy
PoMC has complied with the Victorian Government’s requirements in respect of the National Competition Policy
by adopting the following behaviours and principles:
• clear and non-conflicting objectives
• managerial responsibility, authority and autonomy
• independent and objective performance monitoring
• performance-based rewards and sanctions
• competitive neutrality in input and output markets
• clear delineation of commercial and non-commercial activities
• clearly defined financial reporting requirements
• separate accounting for and funding of non-commercial activities
• appropriate return on assets used in the commercial activity
• application of a tax equivalent regime
• debt guarantee fees
• arrangements for allocation of profits from commercial activities.
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Victorian Industry Participation Policy
The Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003 (Vic) requires the Victorian Government to develop and implement
a Victorian Industry Participation Policy (VIPP) that aims at promoting employment and business growth for local
industries, providing contractors with increased access to local industry capability, exposing local industry to world’s
best practice and developing local industry’s international competitiveness and flexibility in responding to changing
global markets.
During the year, no projects were commenced / completed by PoMC to which the VIPP applied.

Victorian Government Risk Management Framework
In accordance with Standing Direction 4.5.5 of the Minister for Finance, I, Mark Birrell, certify that Port of
Melbourne Corporation has risk management processes in place consistent with the Australian/New Zealand Risk
Management Standard (AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009) and an internal control system is in place that enables the
executive of Port of Melbourne Corporation to understand, manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures.
The Board verified this assurance and that the risk profile of Port of Melbourne Corporation has been critically
reviewed within the last 12 months.

Mark Birrell
Chairman

Assets
All assets of PoMC were noted on a register maintained by the organisation in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 1994 (Vic).

Building and maintenance compliance
PoMC buildings were maintained in accordance with the relevant building and maintenance provisions in
the Building Act 1993 (Vic) and Building Regulations 2006.
All PoMC owned buildings were audited in accordance with Part 12 of the Building Regulations 2006.

Advertising expenditure disclosure
During the reporting period, PoMC undertook advertising expenditure in support of its ‘Steer Clear’ campaign to
promote and advocate safe boating on Port Phillip Bay with specific regard to the dangers of anchoring and mooring
in shipping channels. Working alongside Victoria Water Police, Transport Safety Victoria, Port Phillip Sea Pilots and the
Australian Volunteer Coast Guard, the Steer Clear campaign comprised targeted broadcast and print media advertising
with total expenditure of less than $150,000.

PORT OF MELBOURNE CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2013- 14

45

Protected disclosure
The purpose of the Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (Vic) (PDA) is to encourage and facilitate disclosure of improper
conduct by public officers and public bodies and to provide protection for persons who make those disclosures. PoMC
is a public body and disclosures under the PDA can therefore be made about PoMC or PoMC’s members, officers or
employees. Disclosures must be made directly to the Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission at:
Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission
GPO Box 24234
Melbourne VIC 3001
Tel: 1300 735 135
www.ibac.vic.gov.au

Privacy
The Information Privacy Act 2000 (Vic) (IPA) requires the responsible collection and handling of personal
information in the Victorian public sector. The IPA applies to PoMC and therefore PoMC has responsibilities
under the IPA which include:
• to collect, use and disclose personal information only in accordance with the Information Privacy Principles set out in
the IPA
• to provide individuals with access to information about them held by PoMC and by its contracted service providers
• to provide individuals with the right to request PoMC to correct information about them held by PoMC and its
contracted service providers
• to set out in a document clearly expressed policies on its management of personal information and making the
document available to anyone on request
During 2013-14, there were no complaints by an individual to PoMC or the Victorian Privacy Commissioner about an
act or practice of PoMC that may be an interference with the privacy of an individual.

Freedom of Information
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 (Vic) (FoI Act) enables members of the public to obtain information held by
PoMC. During the period 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014, PoMC received four requests: three requests directly from the
public and one request transferred from a department. The outcomes of the four requests were as follows:
• two requests were granted in full
• one request found no documents
• one request was not finalised as at 30 June 2014
One request from the previous reporting period was decided during the year. That request was granted in full.
Requests for documents under the FoI Act should be made in writing and addressed to:
Freedom of Information Officer
Port of Melbourne Corporation
GPO Box 261
Melbourne VIC 3001
The request should provide such information as is reasonably required to enable the documents to be identified, and
include a $26.50 application fee or evidence that payment should be waived because paying it could cause hardship.
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Consultancies
To deliver its extensive capital program, together with its ongoing operational responsibilities, (PoMC) routinely
engages a wide range of consultants including engineering, environmental, information technology and professional
services providers.
In 2013-14, PoMC engaged 88 consultants where the value of the consultancy was $10,000 or greater (excluding GST).
The total expenditure on these 88 consultancies was $12,679,569 (excluding GST). This included 26 consultancies
related to the Port Capacity Project with a total value of $6,189,801.
In 2013-14, PoMC engaged 42 consultants where the value of the consultancy was less than $10,000 in value
(excluding GST). The total expenditure on these 42 consultancies was $210,496 (excluding GST). This included
13 consultancies related to the Port Capacity Project with a total value of $39,721.
The name, purpose and value of these consultancies can be found on PoMC’s corporate website at
www.portofmelbourne.com/publications/annual-reports.

Availability of additional information
The following information relating to PoMC, relevant to the period 2013-14, has been prepared and is available
to the Minister, Members of Parliament and the public on request:
• Declarations of pecuniary interests duly completed by relevant officers
• Details of publicly available documents produced by PoMC about the port of Melbourne and the places where these
publications can be obtained
• Details of any major external reviews carried out on PoMC
• Details of major research and development activities undertaken by PoMC
• Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary of the objectives and outcomes of each visit
• Details of major promotional, public relations and marketing activities undertaken by PoMC to develop community
awareness of the organisation and the services it provides
• Details of assessments and measures undertaken to improve the occupational health and safety of employees
• Details of consultancies and contractors engaged including services provided and expenditure committed for each
engagement
• List of committees sponsored
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Financial statements
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Port of Melbourne Corporation
Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Notes

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

Continuing operations
Revenue

3

368,421

344,794

Expenses
Finance costs
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

4
9

(237,031)
(29,093)
102,297
(29,542)

(219,560)
(31,396)
93,838
(27,934)
65,904

5

Profit after income tax

20(b)

72,755

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit after income tax
Asset revaluation reserve movement
Employee benefits reserve movement
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to profit after income
tax

20(a)
20(a)

5,381

-

5(c)

5,381

-

20(a)
5(c)

2,449
(735)
1,714

2,924
(876)
2,048

7,095

2,048

79,850

67,952

Items that will be reclassified to profit after income tax
Cash flow hedge reserve movement
Income tax on items that may be reclassified to profit after income tax

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

The above Comprehensive Operating Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Port of Melbourne Corporation
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2014
Notes
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other assets

10
11
12

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets

13
7
14

Total assets

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

36,165
37,689
2,270
76,124

49,990
20,678
1,916
72,584

2,451,195 2,382,935
16,650
17,156
5,188
4,484
2,473,033 2,404,575
2,549,157 2,477,159

Current liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities
Other liabilities

15
16
17
6
18

59,242
97,074
18,919
7,040
6,223
188,498

43,907
44,450
23,822
9,410
716
122,305

Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

16
8
17

324,041
335,278
1,336
660,655

349,115
341,462
1,120
691,697

849,153

814,002

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

1,700,004 1,663,157

Equity
Contributed capital
Reserves
Retained profits

19
20(a)
20(b)

TOTAL EQUITY

858,021
595,116
246,867

857,296
590,497
215,364

1,700,004 1,663,157

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Port of Melbourne Corporation
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes
Balance at 1 July 2012
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income
Total comprehensive
income for the year

Employee
benefits
reserve
$'000

Retained
profits Total equity
$'000
$'000

20(b)

(8,042)
-

596,680
-

-

179,008
65,904

1,599,942
65,904

20(a)

-

2,048

-

-

-

2,048

-

2,048

65,904

67,952

25,000
-

-

-

(29,737)

25,000
(29,737)

25,000

-

(189)
(189)

-

189
(29,548)

(4,737)

Balance at 30 June 2013

-

-

-

857,296

(5,994)

596,491

-

215,364

1,663,157

20(b)

857,296
-

(5,994)
-

596,491
-

-

215,364
72,755

1,663,157
72,755

20(a)

-

1,714

-

5,381

-

7,095

-

1,714

5,381

72,755

79,850

725
-

-

-

(43,728)

725
(43,728)

725

-

2,476
(41,252)

(43,003)

246,867

1,700,004

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Contributions/(distributions)
of equity, net of transaction
costs
19
Dividends paid
20(b)
Transfers from asset
revaluation reserve
20(a) (b)

Balance at 30 June 2014

Cash flow
Asset
hedge revaluation
reserve
reserve
$'000
$'000

832,296
-

Transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners:
Contributions/(distributions)
of equity, net of transaction
costs
19
Dividends paid
20(b)
Transfers from asset
revaluation reserve
20(a) (b)

Balance at 1 July 2013
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income
Total comprehensive
income for the year

Contributed
capital
$'000

858,021

(4,280)

-

(2,476)
(2,476)
594,015

5,381

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Port of Melbourne Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Goods and Services Tax paid to the ATO
Port Licence Fee - paid to the Department of Transport, Planning and
Local Infrastructure
Net cash inflow from operating activities

4(i)
32

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Capital contribution from owners
Dividends paid
Net cash (outflow) from financing activities

19
20(b)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year

10

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

389,385
(92,442)
1,270
(29,033)
(38,324)
(24,103)

369,708
(79,859)
1,768
(32,253)
(61,880)
(25,067)

(76,072)
130,681

(56,250)
116,167

(131,341)
563
(130,778)

(58,202)
1,598
(56,604)

72,000
(42,000)
(43,728)
(13,728)

(59,000)
25,000
(29,737)
(63,737)

(13,825)
49,990

(4,174)
54,164

36,165

49,990

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Port of Melbourne Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014
1

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Corporate information
Port of Melbourne Corporation (PoMC) is a Government Business Enterprise established by the Victorian
Government under the Port Management Act 1995 (Vic) (formerly the Port Services Act 1995 (Vic)).
These financial statements cover PoMC as an individual reporting entity. The Board of PoMC is directly
accountable to the Victorian Government through the Minister for Ports, and the Treasurer.
PoMC is responsible for the strategic management and development of the port of Melbourne including
facilitating trade and trade-related businesses. The trade and trade-related businesses in the port of
Melbourne are container and general cargo.
These financial statements incorporate all activities of PoMC.
In accordance with the Port Management Amendment (Port of Melbourne Corporation Licence Fee) Act
2012 (Vic) which received royal assent on 6 March 2012 with an effective date of commencement of 1
July 2012, PoMC is required to remit to the Victorian Government an annual Port Licence Fee (PLF). The
quantum of the PLF for 2013-14 was $76.43 million which was payable by PoMC to the Victorian
Government in four equal quarterly instalments of $19.11 million.
On 5 May 2014, the Victorian Government announced its plans to offer the private sector a medium term
lease to the operations of the Port of Melbourne. It is expected that an expression of interest for the
lease transaction will be released in early 2015 (calendar year).
(b) Statement of compliance
The financial statements of PoMC are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared
on an accruals basis in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations (AAS). PoMC has been designated a "for profit" entity.
The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of PoMC on 18 August 2014.
(c) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals and a historical cost basis, except for the
revaluation of Property, plant and equipment. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given
in exchange for assets. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Port of Melbourne Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014
1

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Basis of preparation (continued)
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial
information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the
underlying transactions or other events is reported.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as referred to in note 19.
Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Board of PoMC is of the view that the financial statements of PoMC also comply with IFRS as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
(d) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Both the functional and presentation currency of PoMC is Australian dollars ($).
(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.
(e) Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
PoMC recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to PoMC and specific criteria have been met for each of PoMC's
activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the revenue have been resolved. PoMC bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:
(i) Charges on goods (wharfage fees)
Wharfage fees are charged per unit of quantity, volume or weight of cargo for all cargoes, including
empty containers, loaded on or discharged from vessels or between vessels in the port of Melbourne.
Revenue is recognised at the time of the related vessel’s departure from its designated berth.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Revenue (continued)
(ii) Channel usage charges (Channel fees)
Channel fees are charged for the provision of channels for use by vessels in port of Melbourne waters
and the provision of associated services. Channel fees are levied once per ship on the gross tons of
vessels using the channels or in other manners specified for the provision of channel related services.
(iii) Rent and licence fees
Revenue from operating leases is recognised in accordance with PoMC’s accounting policy outlined in
note 1(g).
(iv) Interest revenue
Interest revenue is recognised as the interest accrues to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
using the effective interest rate method.
(vi) Government Grants
Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all grant conditions will be met.
(v) Other revenue
All other revenue from major business activities is recognised at the time the service to which the
revenue relates is provided or work is undertaken and the revenue is receivable.
(f) Income tax
PoMC is subject to the National Tax Equivalent Regime. In accordance with this legislation, PoMC is
required to pay to the State Government Consolidated Fund, amounts determined to be equivalent to
the amounts that would be payable by PoMC if it was subject to the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936
(Cwlth) and Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (Cwlth).
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax expense. Income tax expense is recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised directly in equity.
(i) Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
No deferred tax assets and liabilities will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability,
excluding a business combination where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Income tax (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry‑forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry‑forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period(s) when the asset and liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and PoMC intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
The Taxation of Financial Arrangements (TOFA) legislation became effective on 1 July 2010 which aligned
the tax and accounting treatments of gains and losses arising from financial arrangements.
PoMC is required to adopt TOFA and consequently, it is anticipated that there will be reduced deferred
taxes associated with financial arrangements. The deferred tax balance relating to accrued interest
income that existed at 1 July 2010 continues to reverse over a four year period.
(g) Leases
(i) Finance lease
Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the leased property to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
(ii) Operating lease
The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all of
the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are recognised as an expense in the year in which
they are incurred. This reflects the pattern of benefits derived by PoMC.
Income as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease agreement.
Expense as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets
All assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment (i.e. as to whether their carrying value
exceeds their recoverable amount), except for other financial assets (refer note 1(k)).
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value
exceeds their recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the
difference is written off by a charge to profit or loss except to the extent that the write-down can be
debited to an asset revaluation reserve amount applicable to that specific asset. The recoverable amount
for an asset is measured at the higher of the present value of future cash flows expected to be obtained
from the asset and fair value less costs to sell.
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
For the Statement of Cash Flows presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term and highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
(j) Receivables
Receivables consist of contractual receivables and statutory receivables. Contractual receivables mainly
include trade receivables in relation to goods and services. Statutory receivables include amounts owing
from the Victorian Government and Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits recoverable.
Contractual receivables are classified as financial instruments in note 25. Statutory receivables are not
classified as financial instruments as they do not arise from a contract.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due
for settlement within 15 to 30 days. PoMC’s trading terms allow for interest to be charged on unpaid
amounts that are not settled within the normal trading terms.
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Individual debts that are known to be
uncollectible are written off when identified. An impairment provision is recognised when there is
objective evidence that PoMC may not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the
debtor or debts more than 120 days overdue are considered objective evidence of impairment. The
amount of the impairment loss is the receivable's carrying amount compared to the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to shortterm receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Other financial assets
Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment.
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) over the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. Income is recognised on an
effective interest rate basis for debt instruments.
(l) Derivatives and hedging activities
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
PoMC used derivative financial instruments (including foreign exchange forward contracts and forward
settling loans) to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date.
The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. PoMC has designated certain
derivatives as cash flow hedges in prior reporting periods. If designated, at the inception of the
transaction, the relationship between hedging instruments and hedging items, as well as PoMC's risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various transactions is documented.
PoMC does not have any derivatives designated in a hedge accounting relationship as at the 30 June
2014 (2013: Nil).
Derivatives are recognised as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value
is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that
qualify as cash flow hedges, are taken directly to profit or loss for the year.
The fair values of foreign exchange forward contracts are calculated by reference to current forward
exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles. The fair values of forward settling loans are
determined by reference to market values for similar instruments.
Forward settlings loans are fixed rate facility loans to be drawn down at a future date. The principal
amounts, interest rates and drawdown dates for these future loans have been pre-determined at
inception of the forward settling loans and have the effect of locking in the interest rates and amounts to
be borrowed. For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges entered into by PoMC are classified as cash
flow hedges if they meet the documentation and effectiveness criteria for hedge accounting.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(l) Derivatives and hedging activities (continued)
Cash flow hedge
Cash flow hedges were used to hedge PoMC’s exposure to variability in cash flows that was attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
that could affect profit or loss. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is
recognised directly in equity, whilst the ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss.
For designated hedge accounting relationships, at each balance date, PoMC tests each of the designated
cash flow hedges for effectiveness both retrospectively and prospectively using the dollar offset method.
If as a result of the effectiveness test, the change in the fair value of the hedge instrument over the
change in the fair value of the hedge item falls within the 80% to 125% range, the hedge is considered
highly effective and the effective portion of the change in fair value of the derivative is recognised in the
hedge reserve directly in equity. Where the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument exceeds
the cumulative change in the fair value of the expected future cash flows of the hedged item, the
ineffectiveness is taken immediately to profit or loss.
PoMC does not have any designated hedge accounting relationships as at 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil).
Therefore, PoMC is not required to perform the annual effectiveness tests both retrospectively and
prospectively as at 30 June 2014 (2013: Not applicable).
If a hedge of a forecast transaction, such as a future loan or foreign currency exposure, subsequently
results in the recognition of a financial assets or liability, the associated gains or losses that were
recognised directly in equity should be reclassified into profit or loss in periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit and loss.
PoMC is currently amortising the cash flow hedge reserve over the maturity of the loans. It is expected
that the current balance in the cash flow hedge reserve will have been fully amortised in the year ending
30 June 2022.
(m) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment represent non-current assets comprising land, buildings and
improvements, channel assets, and plant and equipment used by PoMC in its operations.
All non-current physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued in accordance with Financial Reporting
Direction 103E Non-Current Physical Assets (FRD 103E). This revaluation process occurs every five years,
based upon the asset’s classification under the Government Purpose Classification, but may occur more
frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values. Revaluation increments or
decrements arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
If an asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to
equity under the heading of asset revaluation reserve net of applicable tax. However, the increase is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease previously recognised in
profit or loss in respect of that asset.
If an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in profit
or loss. However, the decrease is debited directly to equity under the heading of asset revaluation
reserve to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve in respect of that asset.
Gains and losses on disposals of assets are determined by comparing proceeds from sale with the
carrying amount and selling costs. These are included in profit or loss. Upon disposal or derecognition,
any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold or written off is transferred to retained
profits.
In 2010, a valuation of PoMC's non-current physical assets were performed to determine fair value as
presented below. The valuations were effective at 30 June 2010.
Class
Channels
Land
Buildings and infrastructure
Plant and equipment (except for
office equipment and motor vehicles)
Office equipment and motor vehicles

Method
Discounted cash flows
Market based evidence
Depreciated
replacement cost
Depreciated
replacement cost
Indexed depreciated
replacement cost

Valuer
Valuer-General Victoria
Valuer-General Victoria
Valuer-General Victoria
Valuer-General Victoria
Management Assessment

Since 30 June 2010 and in accordance with FRD 103E, managerial assessments have been undertaken on
PoMC's Property, plant and equipment categories to determine whether their carrying amounts
represented a reasonable approximation of fair value.
The compounded movement (since the last scheduled revaluation as at 30 June 2010) in the relevant
indices issued by the Valuer-General Victoria and the Australian Bureau of Statistics have been reviewed
to assess movement in fair value compared to the carrying amount of Land, Buildings and improvements
and Plant and equipment categories. As the relevant indices did not change by an amount greater than
10% it was determined that the carrying amount for these asset categories approximated fair value.
In 2012, the fair value of Channel assets was assessed using the same principles used by the ValuerGeneral Victoria to value the Channel assets in 2010, which was the discounted cash flow method
(income approach). This method was used as there was no market based evidence of fair value (value
through sale) of the Channel assets given the specialised nature of the assets in question (the Channel
assets would rarely be sold (if ever), except as part of a whole of port business).
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
A revaluation adjustment was made to the Channel assets in 2012 as the fair value based on the
discounted cash flow model was greater than 10% when compared to the carrying amount. An increase
in the Channel assets was offset by an increase in asset revaluation reserve and deferred tax liability.
Refer to note 13 for further details.
In 2013, a fair value assessment was undertaken and it was determined that the carrying amount of all
non-current physical assets reasonably approximated fair value. Further details of the estimates and
assumptions used in the 2013 fair value assessment are disclosed in note 13. In 2014, a fair value
assessment was undertaken and it was determined that the carrying amount of all non-current physical
assets reasonably approximated fair value. Further details of the estimates and assumptions used in the
2014 fair value assessment are disclosed in note 13.
In 2014, AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement (AASB 13) has been revised and released. The revised
standard outlines the requirements for measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities and replaces the
existing fair value definition and guidance in other AASs. AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for all fair value measurements. AASB 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value,
but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under Australian Accounting Standards when
fair value is required or permitted. PoMC has considered the specific requirements relating to; highest
and best use, valuation premise, and principal (or most advantageous) market. The methods,
assumptions, processes and procedures for determining fair value were revisited and adjusted where
applicable. In light of the AASB 13, PoMC has reviewed the fair value principles as well as its current
valuation methodologies in assessing the fair value, and the assessment has not materially changed the
fair values recognised.
AASB 13 has predominantly impacted the disclosures of PoMC. It requires specific disclosures about fair
value measurements and disclosures of fair values, some of which replace existing disclosure
requirements in other standards, including AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
AASB 13 includes a ‘fair value hierarchy’ which ranks the valuation technique inputs into three levels;
using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, other observable
inputs, and unobservable inputs. The disclosure requirements of AASB 13 apply prospectively and need
not be applied in comparative information before first application. Consequently, the 2013 comparatives
of these disclosures have not been provided. Refer to note 13 for further details.
(i) Depreciation
Land held by PoMC is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives (or, in the case of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the lease
term if shorter) as follows:
2014
2013
Channels
40 years
40 years
Buildings and infrastructure
2 - 85 years
2 - 85 years
Plant and equipment
1 - 25 years
1 - 25 years
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(ii) Change in accounting estimates
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
financial reporting period and, where revised, are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.
Where depreciation rates or methods are changed, the net written down value of the asset is
depreciated from the date of the change in accordance with the new depreciation rate or method.
(iii) Acquisition
The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of the assets
provided as consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the
acquisition. Where assets are constructed by PoMC, the costs at which they are initially recorded include
an appropriate share of labour costs incurred directly in the construction of the asset.
All items with a cost or value in excess of $1,000 (2013: $1,000) and with a useful life greater than one
year are recognised as assets. All items within the threshold of $91 to $1,000 (2013: $91 to $1,000) and
with a useful life greater than one year are grouped and recognised as assets within the Low Value Asset
Pool. All other items are expensed as acquired.
(iv) Recoverable amount
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (refer to note 1(h)).
(v) Repairs and maintenance
Routine maintenance, repair costs and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair
relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold,
the cost is capitalised and depreciated.
(vi) Major maintenance dredging costs
The shipping channels in port waters are subject to deterioration through siltation, which reduces the
depth of water available to commercial shipping. The channels are restored to declared depths by
routine maintenance dredging. Dredging and associated costs (including all costs incurred under the
dredging contract to restore the channels to declared depths) are capitalised and amortised.
(n) Assets classified as held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is highly
probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
For an asset in the disposal group to be so classified, it must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition and its sale must be highly probable.
Non‑current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.
Non‑current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the
Statement of Financial Position.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred
subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic
benefits will flow to PoMC.
2014
2013
Software and systems
4 years
4 years
(p) Financial Instruments
Due to the nature of PoMC's activities, certain financial assets and liabilities arise under statute rather
than a contract. Such financial assets and liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments
per AASB 132 - Financial Instruments: Presentation . Statutory receivables and payables arising from
taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the definition of financial instruments as they do not arise under
contract. Refer to note 25 for further details.
(q) Payables
Payables consist of contractual payables and statutory payables. Contractual payables include mainly
trade payables creditors in relation to goods and services. Statutory payables include GST payable, fringe
benefits tax and other tax payable. Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments in note
25. Statutory payables are not classified as financial instruments as they do not arise from a contract.
Trade payables are carried at amortised cost. Due to their short term nature they are not discounted.
They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to PoMC prior to the end of the financial year
that are unpaid as at year end. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition.
(r) Interest bearing liabilities
All interest bearing liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received less,
directly attributable transaction costs. The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends
on whether PoMC has classified the debt as financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and
loss or financial liabilities at amortised cost.
Interest bearing liabilities are fixed rate facility loans and are recorded at amortised cost. Interest bearing
liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless PoMC has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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(s) Finance costs
Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale are expensed rather than added to the cost of the assets on the basis that PoMC's Property, plant
and equipment are recognised at fair value. All other finance costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.
(t) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when PoMC has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount
rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.
(i) Environmental restoration feasibility studies and remediation costs
The direct costs of land remediation are included in the cost of the land (where it is expected to enhance
the value of the land by providing future economic benefits) and a corresponding liability or provision is
recognised when the obligation for remediation arises and can be reliably estimated.
Estimated costs of environmental assessment, management and restoration of assets are recognised as a
liability when the obligation is identified and the costs can be reliably estimated.
PoMC's land and channel assets may be subject to varying degrees of contamination. On-going
environmental assessment and restoration costs are progressively charged as part of the expenses from
ordinary activities when incurred.
Environmental assessment, management and restoration costs for which an obligation will possibly arise
in the future or which cannot be reliably measured are recognised as contingent liabilities.
(u) Employee benefits
In 2013-14, PoMC has applied AASB 119 Employee benefits (September 2011, as amended) (AASB 119)
and the related consequential amendments for the first time.
The revised AASB 119 changes the accounting for the defined benefit plan and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for the changes in defined benefit obligation and plan
assets.

PORT OF MELBOURNE CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2013- 14

18

65

Port of Melbourne Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014
1

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Employee benefits (continued)
The revised standard also changes the definition of short term employee benefits. These were previously
benefits that were expected to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in
which the employees render the related service. However, short-term employee benefits are now
defined as benefits expected to the settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service. PoMC considers that the change in
classification has not altered its measurement of the annual leave provision.
(i) Wages, salaries and sick leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date, are
measured at their nominal amounts (including on-costs) using the remuneration rates expected to apply
at the time of the settlement and are recognised as current liabilities. PoMC does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of these liabilities. No liability is recognised for non‑vesting sick
leave as the anticipated pattern of future sick leave taken indicates that accumulated non‑vesting leave
will not be used.
(ii) Annual leave
Annual leave entitlements are accrued on a pro‑rata basis in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date, having regard to rates expected to apply when the liabilities are settled. The
entire obligation has been recognised as a current liability as PoMC does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement. Those liabilities which are expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the
reporting period, are measured at their undiscounted (nominal) values. Those liabilities that are not
expected to be wholly settled within 12 months are also recognised in the provision for employee
benefits as current liabilities, but are measured at present value of the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.
(iii) Long service leave
Long service leave entitlements are assessed at balance date having regard to expected employees’
remuneration rates on settlement, employment related on-costs and other factors including expected
accumulated years of employment on settlement and past experience. Commonwealth bond rates are
used for discounting future cash flows.
Unconditional long service leave is disclosed as a current liability even when the liability is not expected
to settle within 12 months as PoMC does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement. Those
liabilities which are expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting period, are
measured at their undiscounted (nominal) values. Those liabilities that are not expected to be wholly
settled beyond 12 months are measured at present value.
Conditional long service leave is disclosed as a non‑current liability as there is an unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Conditional long service leave is disclosed as a non‑current liability measured at present value.
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(u) Employee benefits (continued)
(iv) Superannuation
Some PoMC employees are members of defined benefit superannuation schemes, being the Port of
Melbourne Superannuation Fund and the State Superannuation Scheme. These defined benefit funds are
closed to new members. PoMC does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the State
Superannuation Scheme. The Department of Treasury and Finance recognises and discloses the defined
benefit liabilities for the State Superannuation Scheme in its financial report. PoMC has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees in the State Superannuation
Scheme as its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due.
A liability in respect of the Port of Melbourne Superannuation Fund is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position in the provision for employee benefits, and is determined using the Projected Unit Cost
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. This is in accordance with
the revised AASB 119, which is applicable for the first time for the current reporting period, refer to Note
1(ab).
Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, otherwise
it is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.
The net liability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, net of the fair value of the plan
assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of
available refunds and reduction in future contributions to the plan.
Contributions to defined benefit schemes are based on a percentage of members' annual salary as
actuarially determined and reviewed annually. Any deficiency in the net assets of a defined benefit
scheme is recognised as a liability when it arises. Refer to note 21 for further details.
Contributions to defined contribution funds are made in accordance with the Superannuation Guarantee
(Administration) Act 1992 (Cwlth). Contributions are charged as an expense as the contributions are paid
or become payable.
In line with the revised AASB 119 (applicable for 2014) there is a change to the methodology in the
calculation of superannuation expenses. In particular there is a split between superannuation interest
expenses (classified as transactions) and actuarial gains and losses (classified as other economic flows other movements in equity) reported in the comprehensive operating statement. The additional
disclosure requirements from the revised standard are reflected in note 21.
(v) Contributed capital
Consistent with applicable Australian reporting requirements and the Financial Management Act 1994
(Vic), transfers and appropriation for additions of net assets between PoMC and State Government
Departments designated as contributed capital, are recognised as capital transactions.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Contributed capital (continued)
Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructures and/or from all other arrangements
which are deemed to be contributions by owners, where there is insufficient contributed capital for
distribution are recognised as an expense by the transferor and income by the transferee in accordance
with Financial Reporting Direction 119 Contributions by Owners . Alternatively, if the transferor has
approval to reclassify sufficient accumulated funds to contributed capital prior to or at the time of the
asset transfer date then a distribution from contributed capital can occur.
(w) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts.
These commitments are disclosed in note 28 at their nominal value including GST payable.
(x) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position, but
are disclosed by way of a note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and
liabilities are presented inclusive of GST. Refer to note 26 for further details.
(y) Dividend policy
PoMC pays dividends in accordance with a determination of the Treasurer of Victoria under the
Transport Integration Act 2010 (Vic). The obligation to pay a dividend arises after consultation between
PoMC’s Board, the Minister for Ports and the Treasurer of Victoria. Following this consultation process,
the Treasurer makes a formal determination. Only dividends declared on or before reporting date are
recognised as a liability.
(z) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except where the amount of GST incurred is
not recoverable, in which case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or part of an
item of expense. The GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is included as
part of statutory receivables or statutory payables.
(aa) Rounding of amounts
Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars or in certain cases to the nearest dollar.
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1

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(ab) New accounting standards and interpretations that became operative during the year
AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement has been revised and is applicable for the first time for the current
reporting period. Refer to notes 1(m), 13 and 25 for further details.
AASB 119 - Employee Benefits has been revised and is applicable for the first time for the current reporting
period. Refer to notes 1(u) and 21 for further details.
Comparative amounts for 2012-13 and the related amounts as at 1 July 2013 have been restated in
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions set out in AASB 119. The impact is as follows:
$'000
Impact on profit for the year

Increase in employee benefit expense
Decrease in income tax expense
Decrease in profit for the year

(10,223)
3,067
(7,156)

Impact on other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
Increase in income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income
Increase of other comprehensive income for the year
Increase / decrease of total comprehensive income for the year
Impact on Statement of Financial Position
Defined benefit obligation
Deferred tax liabilities
Net Assets

76

(391)
117
(274)

Retained earnings (opening balance)
Retained earning
Defined benefit reserve
Total Equity
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(ac) New accounting standards and interpretations applicable but not operative
At the date of this financial report the following standards and interpretations which are applicable to
PoMC, have been issued but are not yet operative. A discussion of their future requirements and their
impact on PoMC is as follows:

Reference

AASB 9 Financial
instruments

70

Summary

This standard simplifies
requirements for the
classification and measurement
of financial assets resulting from
Phase 1 of the IASB’s project to
replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement (AASB 139
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement ).

23

Application
date
Impact on PoMC’s financial
(financial
statements
years
beginning)
1 Jan 2017 The preliminary assessment has
identified that the financial
impact of available for sale (AFS)
assets will now be reported
through other comprehensive
income (OCI) and no longer
recycled to the profit and loss.
While preliminary assessment
has not identified any material
impact arising from AASB 9, it will
continue to be monitored and
assessed.
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2

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
In the application of AASs, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors including expectations of future events that may have a financial or disclosure impact on PoMC
and are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical accounting judgements
Critical judgements that management has made in the process of applying PoMC’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are:
(i) Recovery of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences as management considers that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilise these temporary differences.
(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets
PoMC assesses impairment of all assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to PoMC
and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. These include obsolescence or physical
damage, technology, economic and political environments and future income expectations. If an
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined.
(iii) Fair value of property, plant and equipment
All non-current physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value in
accordance with FRD 103E.
In 2010, the fair values were determined through independent valuations undertaken by the ValuerGeneral Victoria (except for office equipment and motor vehicles which were determined by a
managerial assessment).
In 2012, a fair value assessment was undertaken and determined that the carrying amount of all noncurrent physical assets except Channel assets reasonably approximated fair value.
The fair value assessment performed on the Channel assets in 2012 revealed that their fair value was in
excess of their carrying amount which resulted in a revaluation adjustment. Further details of the
estimates and assumptions used in the 2012 fair value assessment are disclosed in note 13.
In 2013, a fair value assessment was undertaken and determined that the carrying amount of all noncurrent physical assets reasonably approximated fair value. Further details of the estimates and
assumptions used in the 2013 fair value assessment are disclosed in note 13. In 2014, a fair value
assessment was undertaken and determined that the carrying amount of all non-current physical assets
reasonably approximated fair value. Further details of the estimates and assumptions used in the 2014
fair value assessment are disclosed in note 13.
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2

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i) Remediation of contaminated land
A provision is recognised for the present value of anticipated costs of future restoration of contaminated
land. The provision is based on estimates and time frames provided by external consultants. The
estimates include future costs associated with remediation. The calculation of this provision requires
estimations such as degree of contamination and contaminated land area compared with past
experiences. These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts
currently provided. The provision recognised for each site is periodically reviewed and updated based on
the facts and circumstances available at the time. Changes to the estimated future costs for sites are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position by adjusting both the expense or asset (if applicable)
and provision.
In 2012, the relevant contaminated sites were remediated and the balance of the provision was nil at 30
June 2012.
No provision was required to be recognised in 2014 and the balance of the provision is nil at 30 June
2014 (2013: Nil).
(ii) Fair value measurement and valuation processes
PoMC's property, plant and equipment assets are measured and disclosed at fair value for financial
reporting purposes as per note 13. PoMC's financial assets and liabilities are disclosed at fair value for
financial reporting purposes as per note 25. In order to determine fair value of an asset or a liability,
PoMC uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
The categorisation of fair value measurement into different levels of the fair value hierarchy depends on
the degree to which the inputs into the fair value measurement are observable and the significance of
the inputs into the fair value measurement. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to (unadjusted)
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable
valuation inputs. The hierarchy categorises the inputs used in valuation techniques into three levels:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date. A quoted market price in an active market provides the most
reliable evidence of fair value and is used without adjustment to measure fair value whenever
available, with limited exceptions.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(ii) Fair value measurement and valuation processes (continued)
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include:
- quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets
- quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active
- inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, for example interest
rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, implied volatilities, credit spreads
etc.
- inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or
other means ('market-corroborated inputs').
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs are used to
measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing
for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the
measurement date. An entity develops unobservable inputs using the best information available in
the circumstances, which might include the entity's own data, taking into account all information
about market participant assumptions that is reasonably available.
(iii) Fair value assessment of Channel assets
The Channel assets are subject to annual fair value assessments as required per FRD 103E. The fair value
of Channel assets is assessed annually using the same principles used by the Valuer-General Victoria to
value the Channel assets in 2010 (i.e. the discounted cash flow (DCF) method, income approach). This
method is used in the absence of market based evidence of fair value (i.e. value through sale) of the
Channel assets given the specialised nature of the assets in question and is applied consistently year on
year.
A revaluation adjustment is made to the Channel assets if the fair value based on the discounted cash
flow model is greater than 10% when compared to the carrying amount. An increase/decrease in the
Channel assets is reflected by an increase/decrease in asset revaluation reserve and deferred tax liability.
Further details are disclosed in note 13.
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Notes
3

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

238,955
52,491
50,364
6,738
9,397
4,199
4,728
366,872

226,077
50,177
46,614
7,162
7,019
4,333
1,430
342,812

1,307
242
1,549

1,768
214
1,982

368,421

344,794

Revenue
Operating revenues
Charges on goods (wharfage fees)
Rent and licence fees
Channel usage charges (channel fees)
Charges for berth and area hire
Land tax recovered from tenants
Other charges for services
Recoverable works
Total operating revenues (i)
Other incomes
Interest received
Other revenue
Total other incomes

25

Total revenues

(i) In accordance with the Port Management Amendment (Port of Melbourne Corporation Licence Fee) Act
2012 (Vic) which received royal assent on 6 March 2012 with an effective date of commencement of 1 July
2012, PoMC is required to remit to the Victorian Government an annual Port Licence Fee (PLF).
Year ended 30 June 2013
The quantum of the PLF for 2012-13 was $75.00 million and this was payable by PoMC to the Victorian
Government in four equal quarterly instalments of $18.75 million. The total operating revenue includes
$72.69 million of revenue related to the recovery of the PLF. This represents an under recovery of $2.31
million when compared to the $75.00 million PLF payable to the Victorian Government for 2012-13.
Year ended 30 June 2014
The quantum of the PLF for 2013-14 was $76.43 million and this was payable by PoMC to the Victorian
Government in four equal quarterly instalments of $19.11 million. The total operating revenue includes
$80.33 million of revenue related to the recovery of the PLF. This represents an over recovery of $3.90
million when compared to the $76.43 million PLF payable to the Victorian Government for 2013-14.
Since the PLF became effective in 2012-13, PoMC has incurred PLF expenditure of $151.4 million and
recovered $153.0 million of revenue related to the PLF.
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2014
$'000

2013
$'000

31
32

76,429
73,616
30,176
32,430
11,723
2,773
8,189
235,336

75,000
75,814
26,998
31,835
(9,846)
9,471
2,766
7,942
219,980

32

1,695
1,695

(420)
(420)

237,031

219,560

Notes
4

Expenses
Operating expenses
Port Licence Fee (i)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Contractors and consultant expenses
Salaries and employee benefits expenses
Defined benefits superannuation fund liability movement
Land tax expenses
Operating lease expenses - minimum lease payments
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Other expenses
(Gain)/loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment

Total expenses

(i) In accordance with the Port Management Amendment (Port of Melbourne Corporation Licence Fee) Act
2012 (Vic) which received royal assent on 6 March 2012 with an effective date of commencement of 1 July
2012, PoMC is required to remit to the Victorian Government an annual Port Licence Fee (PLF).
Year ended 30 June 2013
The quantum of the PLF for 2012-13 was $75.00 million and this was payable by PoMC to the Victorian
Government in four equal quarterly instalments of $18.75 million.
Year ended 30 June 2014
The quantum of the PLF for 2013-14 was $76.43 million and this was payable by PoMC to the Victorian
Government in four equal quarterly instalments of $19.11 million.
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Notes
5

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

40,638
(9,464)
(1,632)
29,542

36,360
(8,410)
(16)
27,934

(229)
(9,235)
(9,464)

2,972
(11,382)
(8,410)

102,297
30,689

93,838
28,151

369
(1,516)
29,542

(201)
(16)
27,934

735
735

876
876

Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Movement in deferred tax
Deferred tax - research and development tax credit

Deferred income tax (benefit)/expense included in income tax
expense comprises:
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax assets
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities

7
8

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2013 - 30%)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating
taxable income:
Under/(over) provided in prior year
Tax effect of sundry amounts which are not deductible/(taxable)
Deferred tax - research and development tax credit
Income tax expense
(c) Tax expense/(income) relating to items of other comprehensive income
Asset revaluation reserve
Cash flow hedge reserve

76
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Notes
6

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

7,040

9,410

9,410
40,638
(4,684)
(38,324)
7,040

34,974
36,360
(44)
(61,880)
9,410

6,076
1,835
(36)
5,161
3,086
528
16,650

7,482
2,570
(4)
3,405
3,098
605
17,156

17,156
229
(735)
16,650

21,004
(2,972)
(876)
17,156

Current tax liabilities
Income tax
Movement in current tax liabilities:
Carrying amount 1 July
Charged to income tax expense
Research and development tax incentive offset
Under/(over) provision in prior year
Income tax paid
Carrying amount 30 June

7

5(a)

31

Deferred tax assets
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Employee benefits
Derivative financial instruments
Provision
Income received in advance
Project costs
Accrued expenses

Movement in deferred tax assets:
Carrying amount 1 July
Credited/(charged) to Comprehensive Operating Statement
Credited/(charged) to Statement of Equity
Carrying amount 30 June
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Notes
8

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

67,740
4,928
262,610
335,278

74,990
3,838
24
262,610
341,462

341,462
(9,235)
3,051
335,278

352,814
(11,382)
30
341,462

25,714
3,379
29,093

28,211
3,185
31,396

3,326
32,839
36,165

9,871
40,119
49,990

Deferred tax liabilities
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Depreciation
Capitalised research and development
Other temporary differences
Revalued Property, plant and equipment

Movement in deferred tax liabilities:
Carrying amount 1 July
(Credited)/charged to Comprehensive Operating Statement
(Credited)/charged to Statement of Equity
Capitalised R&D
Carrying amount 30 June

9

5(a)

Finance costs
Interest expense
Other financing charges

25

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand (i)
Deposits (ii)
25

(i) Cash at bank earns a weighted average interest rate of 2.0% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 2.25%).
(ii) Deposits earn a weighted average interest rate of 2.45% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 2.76%).
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Notes

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

33,584
33,584

18,877
18,877

4,105
4,105

1,801
1,801

37,689

20,678

11 Receivables
Current
Contractual
Trade receivables (i) (ii) (iv)
Less provision for doubtful debt (iii)

25

Statutory
GST Input tax credit recoverable

(i) Refer to note 1(j) for terms that apply to trade receivables and note 25 for the nature and extent of risks
arising from contractual receivables.
(ii) Ageing of past due but not impaired
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days

(iii) Ageing of impaired trade receivables
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days

2,799
33
2,832

687
373
1,060

-

-

2,129
141
2,270

1,782
134
1,916

(iv) Trade receivables write-offs
In the current financial year a bad debt of $19,494.50 was written off (2013: Nil).
12 Other assets
Current
Prepayments
Other assets
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891,999
18,560
(27,935)
882,624

922,003
18,709
(58,088)
882,624

At 30 June 2014
Fair value 2012
Fair value 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Notes

Channels
$'000

Carrying amount 1 July 2013
Transfer from capital works in progress
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Depreciation charge
Carrying amount 30 June 2014

Year ended 30 June 2014

13 Property, plant and equipment

Port of Melbourne Corporation
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33

773,788
33,391
807,179

803,804
3,375
807,179

Land
$'000

593,991
163,019
(140,595)
616,415

604,275
50,558
(1,243)
1,003
(38,178)
616,415

Buildings and
infrastructure
$'000

31,235
15,407
(15,777)
30,865

29,533
7,862
(755)
(1,003)
(4,772)
30,865

Plant and
equipment
$'000

114,112
114,112

53,324
(84,048)
144,836
114,112

Capital works
in progress
$'000

922,003
1,399,014
344,638
(214,460)
2,451,195

2,382,935
(3,693)
144,836
(1,998)
(70,885)
2,451,195

Total
$'000
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921,605
609
(30,215)
891,999

922,003
609
(30,613)
891,999

At 30 June 2013
Fair value 2012
Fair value 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Notes

Channels
$'000

Carrying amount 1 July 2012
Transfer from capital works in progress
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation charge
Carrying amount 30 June 2013

Year ended 30 June 2013

13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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773,788
30,016
803,804

801,246
2,959
(401)
803,804

Land
$'000

598,127
113,292
(107,144)
604,275

632,390
10,680
(28)
(38,767)
604,275

Buildings and
infrastructure
$'000

33,611
8,892
(12,970)
29,533

30,444
4,345
(749)
(4,507)
29,533

Plant and
equipment
$'000

53,324
53,324

15,939
(19,462)
56,847
53,324

Capital works
in progress
$'000

922,003
1,405,526
206,133
(150,727)
2,382,935

2,401,624
(869)
56,847
(1,178)
(73,489)
2,382,935

Total
$'000

Port of Melbourne Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2014 Fair Value Assessment
At 30 June 2014 a managerial assessment was undertaken on PoMC's Property, plant and equipment to
determine whether their carrying amount represented a reasonable approximation of fair value.
The following basis/indices were used to undertake the assessment as at June 2014:
Asset class
Channels
Land
Buildings and infrastructure
Buildings
Infrastructure
Plant and equipment

Index
Refer below
Land indices

Source
Refer below
Valuer-General Victoria

Building price indices
Producer price indices
FRD 103E guidance

Valuer-General Victoria
Australian Bureau of Statistics
FRD 103E

As the compounded movement (since the last scheduled revaluation as at 30 June 2010) in the relevant
indices did not change by an amount greater than 10% it was determined that the carrying amount of
Property, plant and equipment approximated fair value.
Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2014:
Carrying
amount

Asset Class

$'000
Channels
Land
Buildings and infrastructure
Buildings
Infrastructure
Plant and equipment
Total

Fair value measurement at
reporting period using:
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
$'000
$'000
$'000

882,624
807,179

-

807,179

882,624
-

38,609
577,806
30,865
2,337,083

-

38,609
577,806
30,865
845,788 1,491,295

The fair value measurement reporting in the table above is in accordance with the fair value hierarchy per
Note 2(b)(ii).
There have been no transfers between levels during the current reporting period.
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the current reporting period.
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Channels
The fair value of Channel assets was assessed in 2014 using the same principles used by the Valuer-General
Victoria to value the Channel assets in 2010 (i.e. the discounted cash flow (DCF) method, income approach).
This method was used in the absence of market based evidence of fair value (i.e. value through sale) of the
Channel assets given the specialised nature of the assets.
The main assumptions applied for the 2014 fair value assessment were as follows:
- a discount rate of 8.00% (2013: 7.85%) was calculated using a nominal post tax weighted average cost of
capital;
- capital expenditure was consistent with the current 30 year capital investment plan;
- cash flows were modelled over a 30 year period (2013: 30 year period) in line with PoMC’s long term
strategic plan;
- the terminal value was calculated using inflation indexed written down value;
- trade forecasts and pricing factors were consistent with PoMC’s 30 year funding model and Pricing Policy
Statement; and
- projected expenses were in line with wage inflation and CPI of 2.5% (2013: 2.5%) for other expenditure
items.
The 2014 fair value assessment of Channel assets indicated a movement of less than 10% compared to the
2013 assessment.
The discount rate and the projected capital expenditure are considered to be the significant valuation
inputs for the purposes of the channel assets valuation.
Channels sensitivity analysis
Management believes that it is reasonably possible, on the basis of existing knowledge, that the value
of the Channel assets could change materially within the next financial year as a result of changes
outside management's control.
Discount rate - volatility in the discount rate can have a significant impact on the value of the Channel
assets. An increase in the discount rate by 1% will have an unfavourable impact of $99.1 million (2013:
$126.00 million) on the fair value of the Channel assets. A decrease in the discount rate by 1% will have
a favourable impact of $117.0 million (2013: $153.00 million) on the fair value of the Channel assets.
Projected capital expenditure - variability in the capital expenditure forecast can have a significant
impact on the value of the Channel assets. An increase in the capital expenditure forecast by 10% will
have an unfavourable impact of $22.6 million (2013: $25.3 million) on the fair value of the Channel
assets. A decrease in the capital expenditure forecast by 10% will have a favourable impact of $22.6
million (2013: $25.3 million) on the fair value of the Channel assets.
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Infrastructure
Infrastructure assets are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. This cost represents the
replacement cost of the asset after applying depreciation rates on a useful life basis. Replacement costs
relate to costs to replace the current service capacity of the asset. Where it has not been possible to
examine hidden works, the use of reasonable materials and methods of construction have been assumed
bearing in mind the age and nature of the assets. Refer below for further details on the last independent
valuation conducted by the Valuer- General Victoria as at 30 June 2010.
The cost per unit and useful life are considered to be the significant valuation inputs for the purposes of the
Infrastructure assets valuation.
Infrastructure sensitivity analysis
Cost per unit - $17,000 - $2,022,000 per unit (weighted average $1,537,000) - A significant increase or
decrease in cost per unit would result in a significantly higher or lower fair value.
Useful life - 0 to 32 years (weighted average 26 years) - A significant increase or decrease in the
estimated useful life of the asset would result in a significantly higher or lower valuation.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is held at fair value and is considered to be specialised in nature, such that it is rarely
sold other than as part of a going concern. Fair value is determined using the depreciated replacement cost
method. Refer below for further details on the last independent valuation conducted by the ValuerGeneral Victoria as at 30 June 2010.
The cost per unit and useful life are considered to be the significant valuation inputs for the purposes of the
Plant and equipment assets valuation.
Plant and equipment sensitivity analysis
Cost per unit - $4,300 - $122,000 per unit (weighted average $87,000) - A significant increase or
decrease in cost per unit would result in a significantly higher or lower fair value.
Useful life - 0 to 13 years (weighted average 10 years) - A significant increase or decrease in the
estimated useful life of the asset would result in a significantly higher or lower valuation.
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

Channels
$'000
891,999
18,560

Opening balance - 1 July 2013
Additions
Disposals
Transfers in/(out) of Level 3
Depreciation
Revaluation type adjustments
Closing balance - 30 June 2014
84

(27,935)
882,624
37

Infrastructure
$'000
566,541
44,564
(443)
1,003
(33,859)
577,806

Plant
and
equipment
$'000
29,533
7,862
(755)
(1,003)
(4,772)
30,865
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2013 Fair Value Assessment
At 30 June 2013 a managerial assessment was undertaken on PoMC's Property, plant and equipment to
determine whether their carrying amount represented a reasonable approximation of fair value.
The following basis/indices were used to undertake the assessment as at June 2013:
Class
Channels
Land
Buildings and infrastructure
Plant and equipment

Index
Refer below
Land indices
Building price indices
Consumer price
indices

Source
Refer below
Valuer-General Victoria
Valuer-General Victoria
Australian Bureau of
Statistics

As the compounded movement (since the last scheduled revaluation as at 30 June 2010) in the relevant
indices did not change by an amount greater than 10% it was determined that the carrying amount of
Property, plant and equipment approximated fair value.
Channels
The fair value of Channel assets was assessed in 2013 using the same principles used by the Valuer-General
Victoria to value the Channel assets in 2010 (i.e. the discounted cash flow (DCF) method, income approach).
This method was used in the absence of market based evidence of fair value (i.e. value through sale) of the
Channel assets given the specialised nature of the assets in question.
The main assumptions applied for the 2013 fair value assessment were as follows:
- a discount rate of 7.85% (2012: 7.62%) was calculated using a nominal post tax weighted average cost of
capital;
- cash flows were modelled over a 30 year period (2012: 30 year period) in line with PoMC’s long term
strategic plan;
- the terminal value was calculated using inflation indexed written down value;
- trade forecasts and pricing factors were consistent with PoMC’s 30 year funding model and Pricing Policy
Statement;
- projected expenses were in line with wage inflation and CPI of 2.5% (2012: 2.5%) for other expenditure
items; and
- capital expenditure was consistent with the current 30 year capital investment plan.
The 2013 fair value assessment of Channel assets indicated a movement of less than 10% compared to the
2012 assessment. The main movements were in the change to the discount rate of 7.85% (2012: 7.62%)
due to an increase in the 10 year Commonwealth bond rate, a revision in the capital expenditure forecast
related to maintenance dredging and an update to the long term trade volume forecast to reflect the lower
than expected trade throughput in 2013.
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Channels sensitivity analysis
Management believes that it is reasonably possible, on the basis of existing knowledge, that the value
of the Channel assets could change materially within the next financial year as a result of changes
outside management's control. In particular, volatility in the discount rate can have a significant impact
on the value of the Channel assets. An increase in the discount rate by 1% will have an unfavourable
impact of $126.00 million (2012: $130.00 million) on the fair value of the Channel assets. A decrease in
the discount rate by 1% will have a favourable impact of $153.00 million (2012: $158.00 million) on the
fair value of the Channel assets.
2012 Fair Value Assessment
At 30 June 2012 a managerial assessment was undertaken on PoMC's Property, plant and equipment to
determine whether their carrying amount represented a reasonable approximation of fair value.
The following basis/indices were used to undertake the assessment as at June 2012.
Class
Channels
Land
Buildings and infrastructure
Plant and equipment

Index
Refer below
Land indices
Building price indices
Consumer price
indices

Source
Refer below
Valuer-General Victoria
Valuer-General Victoria
Australian Bureau of
Statistics

As the relevant indices did not change by an amount greater than 10% it was determined that the carrying
amount of Property, plant and equipment approximated fair value.
Channels
The fair value of Channel assets was assessed in 2012 using the same principles used by the Valuer-General
Victoria to value the Channel assets in 2010 (i.e. the discounted cash flow (DCF) method, income approach).
This method was used in the absence of market based evidence of fair value (i.e. value through sale) of the
Channel assets given the specialised nature of the assets in question.
The main assumptions applied for the 2012 fair value assessment were as follows:
- a discount rate of 7.62% (2011: 9.60%) was calculated using a nominal post tax weighted average cost of
capital;
- cash flows were modelled over a 30 year period (2011: 30 year period) in line with PoMC’s long term
strategic plan;
- the terminal value was calculated using inflation indexed written down value;
- trade forecasts and pricing factors were consistent with PoMC’s 30 year funding model and Pricing Policy
Statement;
- projected expenses were in line with wage inflation and CPI of 2.5% (2011: 2.5%) for other expenditure
items; and
- capital expenditure was consistent with the current 30 year capital investment plan.
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2010 Valuation
Independent valuations were undertaken in 2010 for Financial Reporting Purposes in accordance with the
Financial Management Act 1994 . The valuations incorporated requirements outlined in:
- AASB 116 Property Plant & Equipment; and
- the then FRD 103D Non-current Physical Assets, issued by the Department of Treasury and Finance.
All valuations (except for office equipment and motor vehicles ) were undertaken by the Valuer-General
Victoria. The effective date of the valuations was 30 June 2010.
Channels
The fair value of channel assets was independently determined by the Valuer-General Victoria using the
discounted cash flow method (income approach). This method was used as there was no market based
evidence of fair value (value through sale) since the channel assets would rarely be sold (if ever), except as
part of a continuing business.
The main assumptions applied were as follows:
- a discount rate of 9.45% was calculated using a nominal post tax weighted average cost of capital;
- cash flows were modelled over a 30 year period in line with the timeframe consistent with PoMC’s
Port Development Strategy;
- the terminal value was calculated using inflation indexed written down value;
- trade forecasts and pricing factors were consistent with PoMC’s 30 year funding model and Pricing policy
statement;
- projected expenses were in line with wage inflation and CPI of 2.5% for other expenditure items; and
- capital expenditure was consistent with the Port Development Strategy.
Land
The fair value of land assets was independently determined by the Valuer-General Victoria as the amount
for which the assets can be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length
transaction.
The main assumptions applied were as follows:
- land assets have been assessed on a per title basis;
- special use zoning that applies to particular land assets have been specifically considered; and
- other factors considered included – location and neighbourhood, land area and measurement,
shape of site, aspect, topography, encumbrances, access, services available, heritage related issues (if
applicable), current use, highest and best use and potential for development, actual and potential
capacity to yield a monetary return, comparable sales evidence and other market data.
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Buildings and infrastructure
The fair value of buildings & infrastructure was independently determined by the Valuer-General Victoria
using the depreciated replacement cost method.
The main assumptions applied were as follows:
- cost assessment was based on reconstruction of the buildings and infrastructure to a modern equivalent
standard;
- buildings and infrastructure have been fully maintained in a good state of repair; and
- older buildings and infrastructure that exceeded their useful lives have been deemed to have extended
useful lives based on continual use.
Plant and equipment
The fair value of plant and equipment (except for office equipment and motor vehicles) was independently
determined by the Valuer-General Victoria using the depreciated replacement cost method.
The assumptions applied were as follows:
- replacement cost was the cost of replacing an existing asset at valuation date with an asset of comparable
utility, employing the design and materials that are currently used in the market;
- construction cost data was obtained from published cost guides and historical records; and
- useful lives were determined using industry standards.
Office equipment and motor vehicles
Management determined the fair value of office equipment and motor vehicles using the indexed
depreciated replacement cost method.
The main assumptions applied were as follows:
- effective life of the assets (reviewed annually) is accurate;
- indexation figures will not differ significantly from March 2010 to June 2010 quarter; and
- relevant consumer price indices were used to index the relevant assets.

14 Intangible assets
Notes
Software and systems
At cost
Accumulated amortisation

Movement in intangible assets:
Carrying amount 1 July
Transfer from capital works in progress
Disposals
Amortisation expense
Carrying amount 30 June

88

13

41

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

12,038
(6,850)
5,188

11,754
(7,270)
4,484

4,484
3,693
(258)
(2,731)
5,188

5,940
869
(2,325)
4,484
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Notes

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

19,107
12,362
23,104
54,573

18,750
11,177
10,091
40,018

115
4,554
4,669

101
3,788
3,889

59,242

43,907

15 Payables
Current
Unsecured
Contractual
Port Licence Fee - payable to the Department of Transport, Planning and Local
Infrastructure
Trade payables (i) (ii)
Accrued expenses (ii)

Statutory
FBT payable
GST payable

(i) Refer to note 1(q) for terms that apply to payables.
(ii) Refer to note 25 for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables and maturity
analysis of contractual payables.

16 Interest bearing liabilities
Current
Secured
Treasury Corporation of Victoria borrowings

25

97,074

44,450

Non-current
Secured
Treasury Corporation of Victoria borrowings

25

324,041

349,115

Interest bearing liabilities are secured by a Victorian State Government guarantee. The interest rates
relating to interest bearing liabilities are at fixed rates, ranging from 2.73% to 6.99% (2013: 5.78% to
6.99%), with the effective weighted average rate of 6.28% (2013: 6.79%). Non‑current interest bearing
liabilities have a weighted average maturity of 4.2 years (2013: 4.8 years) and are payable by 15 October
2021.
PoMC has available an overdraft facility of $1,000,000 (2013: $1,000,000) and a temporary purpose
financial accommodation of $50,000,000 (2013: $50,000,000) which was not utilised at 30 June 2014.
Refer to note 25 for maturity analysis and the nature and extent of risks arising from borrowings. During
the year, there were no defaults and breaches of any loans.
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2014
$'000

2013
$'000

5,828
13,091
18,919

5,350
18,472
23,822

1,336
20,255

1,120
24,942

1,726

1,346

530
2,855
13,091

532
2,869
18,472

1,159
19,361

1,006
24,225

717
177
894

603
114
717

20,255

24,942

2014
$'000

2014
$'000

2014
$'000

Employee
benefits

On-costs

Total

5,753
2,151
(1,659)
25
6,270

717
734
(565)
8
894

6,470
2,885
(2,224)
33
7,164

Notes
17 Provisions
Current
Employee benefits - employee leave provisions (i)
Employee benefits - defined benefits superannuation fund liability (i)

21(a)

Non-current
Employee benefits - employee leave provisions (i)
Total Provisions
(i) Employee benefits and related on-costs
Current employee benefits
Annual leave entitlements
Unconditional and expected to wholly settle within 12 months
Long service leave entitlements
Unconditional and expected to wholly settle within 12 months
Unconditional and expected to wholly settle after 12 months
Defined benefits superannuation fund liability

21(a)

Non-current employee benefits
Long service leave entitlements
Total employee benefits
Current on-costs
Non-current on-costs
Total on-costs
Total employee benefits and related on-costs
(ii) Movement in Provisions

Opening balance
Additional provision recognised
Reductions arising from payments
Unwind of discount and effect of changes in discount
Closing balance

The movement in the Defined benefits superannuation fund liability is disclosed in Note 21(a). Only
movements in provisions for annual leave and long service leave entitlements and on-costs are presented in
the table above.
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Notes

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

6,204
19
6,223

333
383
716

857,296
-

832,296
25,000

725
858,021

857,296

18 Other liabilities
Income in advance
Other liabilities

19 Contributed capital
Carrying amount 1 July
Capital contribution from the then Department of Transport
Capital contribution from the Department of Transport, Planning and
Local Infrastructure
Carrying amount 30 June

31
31

Capital Management
PoMC manages capital risk through the monitoring and reporting of key ratios to the Board on a monthly
basis including:
- Interest cover ratio
- Gearing ratio
- Leverage ratio
- Liquidity ratio
A key outcome for PoMC’s business financial sustainability is to ensure that it makes a sufficient return
from its operational activities and investments in infrastructure to fund the future development of the Port.
The key ratios monitored are based on maintaining a minimum of a BBB credit rating and that future
decisions regarding capital investment and funding requirements ensure that PoMC does not breach these
key ratios. Target maximum gearing is between 40%‑45%.
As at 30 June 2014, PoMC’s liquidity ratio is less than one. This is primarily due to the timing of the
repayment of interest bearing liabilities over the next twelve months which is in line with PoMC’s debt
repayment schedule. This is fully planned and expected and is consistent with where PoMC is in its capital
investment cycle. PoMC continues to retain a solid balance sheet, positive cash flows and strong growth
prospects, which are all evidence that PoMC maintains a sustainable financial position and supports the
adoption of the going concern basis.
There have been no changes to the processes and procedures that are applied by PoMC in managing capital
risk since 2013.
PoMC does not have any externally imposed debt related covenants, financial ratios or any other capital
requirements.
PoMC’s Treasury Management Policy and procedures are in compliance with the Borrowing and
Investment Powers Act 1987 (Vic), the Department of Treasury and Finance Treasury Management
Guidelines and Standing Direction 4.5.6 Treasury Risk Management .
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Notes

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

594,015
(4,280)
5,381
595,116

596,491
(5,994)
590,497

596,491
(2,476)
594,015

596,680
(189)
596,491

20 Reserves and retained profits
(a) Reserves
Asset revaluation reserve
Cash flow hedge reserve
Employee benefits reserve

Movement in asset revaluation reserve:
Carrying amount 1 July
Transfer to retained earnings on assets disposed
Carrying amount 30 June

PoMC has a separate asset revaluation reserve for Land, Buildings and improvements, Property, plant and
equipment and Channel assets. The reserves are used to record increments and decrements in the fair
value of the assets net of tax effect.
Movement in cash flow hedge reserve:
Carrying amount 1 July
Forward settling loans charged to other comprehensive income
Tax effect of settling loans charged to comprehensive income
Carrying amount 30 June

25(e)
25(e)

(5,994)
2,449
(735)
(4,280)

(8,042)
2,924
(876)
(5,994)

This reserve records the unamortised portion of the gain or loss on a hedging instrument in a prior cash
flow hedge that has previously been determined to be an effective hedge. This balance will be amortised
over the remaining term of the initial underlying exposure.
Movement in employee benefits reserve:
Carrying amount 1 July
Movements in actuarial gains/ losses
Carrying amount 30 June

5,381
5,381

-

This reserve has been set up in accordance with the revised AASB 119 Employee Benefits to capture the
movements in the actuarial gains and losses in respect of the Defined Benefit Superannuation Fund. Refer
to Note 21 for further details.
(b) Retained profits
Carrying amount 1 July
Profit after income tax
Dividends paid
Transfer from asset revaluation reserve
Carrying amount 30 June

92

31
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215,364
72,755
(43,728)
2,476
246,867

179,008
65,904
(29,737)
189
215,364
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21 Superannuation
Defined benefit superannuation plan
A liability in respect of the Port of Melbourne Superannuation Fund (Fund) is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position, and is measured as the present value of the defined benefit obligation at 30 June 2014
less the fair value of the superannuation fund’s assets at that date and any unrecognised past service cost.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is based on expected future payments which arise from
membership of the fund to year end, calculated annually by an independent actuary using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and periods of service.
Future taxes, such as taxes on investment income and employer contributions, are taken into account in
the actuarial assumptions used to determine the relevant components of PoMC’s defined benefit liability.
The Fund only has defined benefit members and is closed to new members. Members receive pension
benefits on retirement, death and disablement. On withdrawal, members have a choice of receiving a lump
sum benefit and/or a deferred pension benefit.
As at 30 June 2014, the Fund has 9 active members (2013: 12) and 23 pension members (2013: 20).
The Superannuation Industry Supervision (SIS) legislation governs the superannuation industry and provides
the framework within which superannuation plans operate. The SIS Regulations require an actuarial
valuation to be performed for each defined benefit superannuation plan every three years, or every year if
the plan pays defined benefit pensions.
The Fund’s Trustee is responsible for the governance of the Fund. The Trustee has a legal obligation to act
solely in the best interests of Fund beneficiaries. The Trustee has the following roles:
- Administration of the Fund and payment to the beneficiaries from Fund assets when required in
accordance with the Fund rules;
- Management and investment of the Fund assets; and
- Compliance with superannuation law and other applicable regulations.
The prudential regulator, the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA), licenses and supervises
regulated superannuation plans.
Contribution recommendations
Employer contributions to the defined benefit superannuation plan are based on recommendations by the
plan’s actuary. Actuarial assessments are made annually and the last such assessment was made at 30 June
2014. The objective of funding is to ensure that the benefit entitlements of members and other
beneficiaries are fully funded by the time they become payable. PoMC has no legal obligation to settle this
liability with an immediate contribution or additional one off contributions.
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21 Superannuation (continued)
Funding method
The method used to determine the employer contribution recommendations at the last actuarial review
was the aggregate funding method. The method adopted affects the timing of the cost to PoMC.
Nature of asset/liability
The Port of Melbourne Superannuation Fund does not impose a legal liability on PoMC to cover any deficit
that exists in the fund. If the fund were wound up, there would be no legal obligation on PoMC to make
good any shortfall. The Trust Deed of the fund states that if the fund winds up, the remaining assets are to
be distributed by the Trustee of the fund in an equitable manner as it sees fit.
PoMC may, at any time by notice to the Trustee, terminate its contributions. PoMC has a liability to pay the
contributions due before the effective date of the notice, but there is no requirement for it to pay further
contributions, irrespective of the financial condition of the fund. However, PoMC does have a constructive
obligation for the fund and therefore has recognised a current liability in the Statement of Financial
Position in respect of its defined benefit superannuation arrangements. Refer to note 17.
The Fund typically exposes PoMC to actuarial risks such as investment risk, salary growth risk, legislative
risk, pension risk and inflation risk as outlined in more detail below:
Investment risk - the risk that investment returns will be lower than assumed and PoMC will need to
increase contributions to offset this shortfall.
Salary growth risk - the risk that wages or salaries (on which future benefit amounts will be based) will
rise more rapidly than assumed, increasing defined benefit amounts and thereby requiring additional
employer contributions.
Legislative risk - The risk is that legislative changes could be made which increase the cost of providing
the defined benefits.
Pension risk - The risk is firstly that pensioner mortality will be lighter than expected, resulting in
pensions being paid for a longer period. Secondly, that a greater proportion of eligible members will
elect to take a pension benefit, which is generally more valuable than the corresponding lump sum
benefit.
Inflation risk - The risk that inflation is higher than anticipated, increasing pension payments, and
thereby requiring additional employer contributions.
The defined benefit assets are invested in the BT Institutional Retirement PST and the Schroder Balanced
Fund Standard Class. The assets are diversified within these investment options and therefore the Fund has
no significant concentration of investment risk.
There were no plan amendments affecting the defined benefits payable, curtailments or settlements during
the year. No other post retirement benefits are provided to these employees.
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21 Superannuation (continued)
(a) Reconciliation of the Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset)
Movements in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) were as follows:

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at start of the year
+ Current services cost
+ Net interest
+ Past service cost
+ Gain/loss on settlements
- Actual return on fund assets less interest income
+ Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
+ Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
+ Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in liability experience
+ Adjustment for effect of asset ceiling
- Employer contributions
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at end of the year

2014
$'000
18,081
850
561
2,178
(2,251)
(482)
1,490
13,091

2013
$'000
28,035
984
699
2,864
2,393
(6,666)
(3,194)
1,306
18,081

2014
$'000
23,452
897
2,178
1,490
93
1,071
440
26,599

2013
$'000
19,780
596
2,864
1,306
100
798
396
23,452

(b) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Defined Benefit Fund Assets
Movements in the fair value of the defined benefit fund assets were as follows:

Fair value of fund assets at beginning of the year
+ Interest income
+ Actual return on fund assets less interest income
+ Employer contributions
+ Contributions by fund participants
- Benefits paid
- Taxes, premiums & expenses paid
+ Transfers in
- Contributions to accumulation section
+ Settlements
+ Exchange rate changes
Fair value of fund assets at end of the year
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21 Superannuation (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation
Movements in the defined benefit obligation were as follows:
2014
$'000
41,533
850
1,458
93
(2,251)
(482)
1,071
440
39,690

Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year
+ Current service cost
+ Interest cost
+ Contributions by fund participants
+ Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
+ Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
+ Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from changes in liability experience
- Benefits paid
- Taxes, premiums & expenses paid
+ Transfers in
- Contributions to accumulation section
+ Past service cost
+ Settlements
+ Exchange rate changes
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year

2013
$'000
47,815
984
1,295
100
2,393
(6,666)
(3,194)
798
396
41,533

(d) Fair value of Defined Benefit Fund assets
As at 30 June 2014
Asset category

Carrying
amount
$'000

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity instruments
Debt instruments
Real Estate
Investment funds - Growth Fund
Asset-backed securities
Structured debt
Total

26,599
26,599

Fair value measurement at
reporting period using:
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
$'000
$'000
$'000
-

26,599
26,599

-

The fair value of the Fund assets does not include amounts relating to PoMC's own financial instruments or
any property occupied, or other assets used.
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21 Superannuation (continued)
(e) The percentage invested in each asset class at reporting date
2014
%
33
22
24
3
11
7
100

Australian equity
International equity
Fixed income
Property
Alternatives/Other
Cash

2013
%
32
22
23
4
10
9
100

(f) Significant actuarial assumptions at the reporting date
Assumptions to determine Defined Benefit Cost

2014
2013
%
%
3.8
3.0
3.4380
3.3125
2.5
2.5
Standard Standard

Discount rate
Expected salary increase rate
Expected pension increase rate
Pension mortality

Assumptions to determine Defined Benefit Obligation

2014
2013
%
%
4.1
3.8
3.4
3.5
2.5
2.5
Standard Standard

Discount rate
Expected salary increase rate
Expected pension increase rate
Pension mortality
(g) Sensitivity Analysis

The defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2014 under several scenarios is presented below.
Scenario A: 0.5% per annum discount rate sensitivity
Scenario B: 0.5% per annum higher salary increase rate sensitivity
Scenario C: 0.5% per annum higher pension increase rate sensitivity
Scenario D: pensioner mortality sensitivity

Discount rate %
Salary increase rate %
Pension increase rate %
Pensioner mortality assumption
Defined benefit obligation ($'000)
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Base
Case
4.1
3.438
2.5
Standard
39,690

50

Scenario
A
-0.5 pa
43,511

Scenario
B
+0.5 pa
40,055

Scenario
C
+0.5 pa
43,115

Scenario
D
90%
40,635
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(h) Funding arrangements
The financing objective adopted at the 30 June 2014 actuarial investigation of the Fund is for the assets to
meet 100% of vested benefits at 30 June 2017 and to maintain coverage of accrued benefits above 100%
for the next three years.
As part of the 30 June 2014 actuarial investigation, it was recommended that PoMC contributes to the Fund
as follows:
- 20% of superannuation salaries,
- Additional lump sum contributions of $85,000 per month for the period to 30 June 2015
- Additional lump sum contributions of $21,500 per month to finance expected administration and
insurance costs, increasing to $22,500 per month for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015, then
increasing by 3% per annum for subsequent years to finance expected administration and insurance
costs.
(i) Expected contributions
2015
$'000
1,495

Expected employer contributions
(i) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligations
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 16 years

$'000
1,023
1,076
1,097
1,276
1,496
9,280

30 June 2015
30 June 2016
30 June 2017
30 June 2018
30 June 2019
Following 5 years
(j) Asset-Liability matching strategies
There are no asset and liability matching strategies adopted by the Fund.
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22 Responsible persons
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial
Management Act 1994 (Vic), the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the
reporting period.
(a) Names
The names of persons who were responsible persons of PoMC at any time during the financial year were:
Responsible Ministers:
The Hon. David Hodgett MP
The Hon. Michael O'Brien MP

Minister for Ports
Treasurer of Victoria

Directors - as at 30 June 2014:
The Hon. Mark Birrell
Mr J Cain
Mr D B Cranwell (re-appointed 15 July 2013)
Mr I Dickson
Mr J Fitzgerald (commenced leave of absence 22 April 2014)
Mr J Marshall (term commenced 15 July 2013)
Mr B Nicholls
Ms J van Reyk
Ms A Williams (term commenced 15 July 2013)
Accountable Officer:
Mr S G Bradford (retired 20 December 2013)
Ms C Anderson (term: 21 December 2013 - 23 February 2014)
Mr N Easy (term commenced 24 February 2014)

Chairman
Deputy Chairman

former Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
interim CEO
current CEO

(b) Remuneration
The Responsible Ministers’ remuneration is reported in the financial statements of the Department of
Premier and Cabinet.
The number of responsible persons, other than Responsible Ministers, and their total remuneration received
or receivable during the reporting period are shown in the first two columns in the table below in their
relevant income bands.
For the period 1 July to 20 December 2013, the former CEO was entitled to an annual remuneration package
including a base salary of $437,500 (2013: $406,000) and a potential annual incentive based bonus of up to
20% of salary. For the period 1 July to 20 December 2013, the base remuneration paid was $207,555 (2013:
$406,000) and the bonus paid or payable was $34,215 (2013: $66,990).
For the period 21 December 2013 to 23 February 2014, the interim CEO was entitled to an annual
remuneration package including a base salary of $425,000 (2013: N/A) and a potential annual incentive
based bonus of up to 20% of salary. For the period 21 December 2013 to 23 February 2014, the base
remuneration paid was $79,894 (2013: N/A) and the bonus paid or payable was $13,262 (2013: N/A).
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22 Responsible persons (continued)
(b) Remuneration (continued)
For the period 24 February 2014 to 30 June 2014, the current CEO was entitled to an annual remuneration
package including a base salary of $425,000 (2013: N/A) and a potential annual incentive based bonus of up
to 20% of salary. For the period 24 February 2014 to 30 June 2014, the base remuneration paid was
$147,115 (2013: N/A) and the bonus paid or payable was $26,618 (2013: N/A).
Total remuneration includes base remuneration, bonus paid or payable and termination and retirement type
payments.
Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus paid or payable and long service leave payouts, termination and
retirement type payments.
At the time of retirement, payments such as annual leave and long service leave payouts and retirement
benefits paid to the former CEO were $154,866 (2013: Nil).
Income Band

Total Remuneration
2014
2013
No.
No.
6
8
5
1
1
1
1
1
1
12
13
1,132,878
943,433

$20,000 to $29,999
$40,000 to $49,999
$70,000 to $79,999
$80,000 to $89,999
$90,000 to $99,999
$140,000 to $149,999
$170,000 to $179,999
$250,000 to $259,999
$390,000 to $399,999
$400,000 to $409,999
$470,000 to $479,999
Total number of responsible persons
Total Amount

Base Remuneration
2014
2013
No.
No.
6
8
5
1
1
1
1
1
1
12
13
949,981
876,443

(b) Loans
There were no loans in existence between PoMC and responsible persons and/or their related parties during
the reporting period and at the date of this report (2013: Nil).
(c) Other transactions of responsible persons and their related parties
The terms and conditions of transactions entered into with responsible persons’ related entities occurred
within a normal customer and supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable than those
available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to other entities on
an arm’s length basis.
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22 Responsible persons (continued)
(c) Other transactions of responsible persons and their related parties (continued)
Mr M Birrell is the Chairman of PoMC and:
- is the Chairman of Citywide, a provider of open space, environmental and civil infrastructure services
which provides services to PoMC. Expenses incurred in 2014 were $107,679 (2013: $322,035)
- was the Chairman of Infrastructure Partnerships Australia (IPA) until his retirement in December 2013
PoMC is a corporate member of IPA. Expenses incurred in 2014 were $25,000 (2013: $25,000)
- is the President of the Victorian Employers Chamber of Commerce and Industry (VECCI). PoMC is
a corporate member of VECCI. Expenses incurred in 2014 were $38,218 (2013: $50,636).
Mr I Dickson is a director of the Australian Logistics Council (ALC), the peak national body representing the
major and national companies in the Australian freight transport and logics supply chain. PoMC is a
corporate member of ALC. Expenses incurred in 2014 were $11,550 (2013: 11,227).
Ms J van Reyk is a director of PoMC and:
- a director of Citywide, a provider of open space, environmental and civil infrastructure services which
provides services to PoMC. Expenses incurred in 2014 were $107,679 (2013: $322,035)
- a director of Melbourne Water (MW), which manages Melbourne's water supply catchments, treats and
supplies drinking and recycled water and manages waterways and major drainage systems in the Port Philip
and Westernport region. Expenses incurred in 2014 were Nil (2013: In December 2012, PoMC sold a parcel
of land to MW. The sale was transacted at a fair value of $1 million that was determined by the
Valuer-General of Victoria. Approval was obtained from the Victorian Government Land Monitor prior to
the sale. The value of the land parcel in PoMC's asset register was $0.4 million, therefore a profit of $0.6
million was recognised on this transaction).
Mr J Fitzgerald is a director of PoMC and an independent steering committee member of the Victorian
Department of State Development, Business and Innovation (DSDBI). On 30 June 2014, DSDBI transferred to
PoMC via the Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure two parcels of land under seabed
at Beacon Cove precinct, Port Melbourne. The value of the land parcels was $724,040. The transfer was
designated as a contribution by owners in accordance with FRD 119A - Transfers through Contributed
Capital .
Mr S G Bradford retired as the CEO of PoMC on 20 December 2013. Mr S G Bradford was a director of
Through Transport Mutual Insurance Association Limited. This entity provided insurance to PoMC and seeks
to appoint directors from within its membership base. Insurance premium paid in 2014 was $276,599 (2013:
$232,716). Mr S G Bradford's daughter is employed at Deloitte Australia a provider of consulting services to
PoMC during the year. Expenses incurred for the period 1 July to 20 December 2013 were $72,670 (2013:
$10,690).
Mr N Easy commenced his term as the CEO of PoMC on 24 February 2014. Mr N Easy's sibling is employed at
SeaRoad. SeaRoad is an Australian integrated transport and logistics service provider specialising in Bass
Strait shipping and logistics. SeaRoad is an existing tenant at a PoMC owned site. PoMC derives rental
revenue from SeaRoad. For the period 24 February to 30 June 2014, PoMC and SeaRoad have continued to
maintain their pre-existing landlord-tenant relationship on a commercial basis.
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23 Remuneration of executives and payments to other personnel
(i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities)
(a) Remuneration
The remuneration of responsible persons (Responsible Ministers, Directors and Accountable Officer (CEO)) is
disclosed in Note 22.
The number of executive officers, other than responsible persons (Responsible Ministers, Directors and
Accountable Officer (CEO)), and their total remuneration received or receivable during the reporting period
are shown in the table below in their relevant income bands.
The disclosure is limited to executive officers, other than responsible persons for whom the total
remuneration received or receivable during the reporting period was in excess of $100,000. This is in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Direction 21B (FRD 21B) - Disclosures of Responsible Persons,
Executive Officers and Other Personnel (Contractors with Significant Management Responsibilities) in the
Financial Report.
Total remuneration includes base remuneration, bonus paid or payable, long service leave payouts,
redundancy payments and termination and retirement type payments.
Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus paid or payable, long service leave payouts, redundancy payments
and termination and retirement type payments.
The total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over
the reporting period.
Termination and retirement type payments such as long service leave payouts, redundancy payments and
retirement benefits paid or payable during the year pursuant to employment contracts were Nil (2013:
$64,662).
During the reporting period and at the date of this report, PoMC did not have any contractors with
significant management responsibilities.
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23 Remuneration of executives and payments to other personnel
(i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities) (continued)
(a) Remuneration (continued)
Income Band

Total Remuneration
2014
2013
No.
No.
1
1
6
2
3
3
2
4
7
3
5
3
1
4
5
5
2
2
1
4
5
4
5
2
4
3
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
2
1
1
1
53
49
51.0
46.9
10,407,107 9,702,161

$90,000 to $99,999
$100,000 to $109,999
$110,000 to $119,999
$120,000 to $129,999
$130,000 to $139,999
$140,000 to $149,999
$150,000 to $159,999
$160,000 to $169,999
$170,000 to $179,999
$180,000 to $189,999
$190,000 to $199,999
$200,000 to $209,999
$210,000 to $219,999
$220,000 to $229,999
$230,000 to $239,999
$240,000 to $249,999
$250,000 to $259,999
$260,000 to $269,999
$270,000 to $279,999
$290,000 to $299,999
$300,000 to $309,999
$310,000 to $319,999
$320,000 to $329,999
$350,000 to $359,999
$370,000 to $379,999
$380,000 to $389,999
Total number of executives
Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) (i)
Total Amount

Base Remuneration
2014
2013
No.
No.
1
1
3
9
1
1
4
6
8
8
7
5
3
1
4
4
5
6
1
4
3
1
3
1
1
1
1
2
2
2
1
1
1
53
49
51.0
46.9
9,451,316 8,475,428

i) Annualised employee equivalent is based on 38 paid working hours per week over the 52 weeks for a reporting
period.

Bonuses paid or payable during the year pursuant to individual employment contracts are based on a short
term (annual) incentive program. In accordance with FRD 21B bonuses paid or payable disclosed in this note
only relate to employment contracts where the total remuneration received or receivable during the
reporting period exceeds $100,000 and they occupy a management role.
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23 Remuneration of executives and payments to other personnel
(i.e. contractors with significant management responsibilities) (continued)
(b) Loans and Other transactions of executives and their related parties
There were no loans or other transactions in existence between PoMC and executive officers and/or their
related parties during the reporting period and at the date of this report (2013: Nil).

24 Remuneration of auditors
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditors of PoMC:
2014
$
72,600

Victorian Auditor-General's Office
Audit of financial reports

2013
$
73,219

25 Financial Instruments
Details of significant accounting policies and methods adopted including the criteria for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each
class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instruments are disclosed in note 1 to the financial
statements.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage PoMC's financial risks within
the State Government's policy parameters. PoMC's main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and
foreign currency risk. PoMC manages these financial risks in accordance with its Treasury Management
Policy.
2014
2013
$'000
$'000
Notes
(a) Categorisation of financial instruments
Contractual financial assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
10
36,165
49,990
Receivables - Trade receivables
11
33,584
18,877
Total contractual financial assets
69,749
68,867
Contractual financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost
Current liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities
Total contractual financial liabilities

104
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15
16

54,573
97,074

40,018
44,450

16

324,041
475,688

349,115
433,583
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25 Financial Instruments (continued)
Notes

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

1,307
(25,714)
(24,407)

1,768
(28,211)
(26,443)

(a) Categorisation of financial instruments (continued)
Net holding gain/(loss) on financial instruments by category
Interest income on contractual financial assets (i)
Interest expense on contractual financial liabilities (ii)
Total

3
9

(i) The net holding gain/(loss) on contractual financial assets equates to the interest income on cash and
cash equivalents.
(ii) The net holding gain/(loss) on contractual financial liabilities equates to the interest expense on interest
bearing liabilities.
(b) Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Notes

Financial
institution
credit
rating
AAA
$'000

Government
agency
credit
rating
AAA
$'000

Third
parties
credit
rating
other
than
AAA
$'000

Total
$'000

2014
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - Trade receivables (i)

10
11

3,326
3,326

32,839
32,839

33,584
33,584

36,165
33,584
69,749

2013
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - Trade receivables (i)

10
11

9,871
9,871

40,119
40,119

18,877
18,877

49,990
18,877
68,867

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory receivables.
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25 Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to PoMC. The carrying amount of PoMC's financial assets recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position, net of any provisions for doubtful debt, represents PoMC's maximum exposure to credit
risk from financial assets.
PoMC actively manages its credit risk using a range of processes and procedures. These include performing
credit checks for new and existing customers as required, obtaining bank guarantees where considered
appropriate and monitoring the performance of significant trading partners on an ongoing basis.
The provision for impairment of financial assets is calculated based on past experience and current and
expected changes in clients' credit ratings. An aging analysis is provided in note 11 to outline PoMC’s
exposure to credit risk.
PoMC does not engage in hedging for its contractual assets. PoMC only deals with banks with high credit
ratings.
(d) Market risk
Market risk refers to the risk that PoMC's profit or loss or equity could change as a result of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. PoMC's policy is to
continuously monitor its exposure to market risk arising from existing and future transactions.
PoMC is not exposed to currency risk in the current or comparative reporting periods since its operative
functional currency is the Australian Dollar. PoMC's loans have fixed rates therefore are not subject to
interest rate risk exposure and PoMC is not exposed to any other price risk.
A movement of 100 basis points up and down in market interest rates are "reasonably possible" over the
next 12 month period. A sensitivity analysis with respect to cash and cash equivalents on the following basis
is presented in the table below.
Interest rate risk sensitivity

Notes

106

Carrying
amount
$'000

Net
result
interest
rate -100
basis
points

Net
result
interest
rate +100
basis
points

2014 - contractual financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

10

36,165

(362)

362

2013 - contractual financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

10

49,990

(500)

500
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Notes

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

25 Financial Instruments (continued)
(e) Derivative instruments used by PoMC
Cash flow hedges
In order to protect against rising interest rates, PoMC entered into forward settling loans under which it had
a right to pay interest at fixed rates. The forward settling loans were measured at fair value and all gains
and losses attributable to the hedged risk were taken directly to equity and amortised as the interest
expense is recognised. All forward settling loans were drawn down by 30 June 2010.
Movements in cash flow reserve:
Carrying amount 1 July
Forward settling loans charged to other comprehensive income
Tax effect of settling loans charged to comprehensive income
Carrying amount 30 June
Gain/(loss) transferred to Comprehensive Operating Statement

20(a)
20(a)

(5,994)
2,449
(735)
(4,280)

(8,042)
2,924
(876)
(5,994)

-

-

(f) Financial Risk Management
PoMC maintains a comprehensive Risk Management System which is integrated with its business planning
processes. There is a formally documented Risk Management Policy, Risk Management Procedures and a
framework which are consistently applied across all levels of the business. A Financial Risk Management
Assessment is tabled to the Audit and Finance Committee on an annual basis in line with the requirements
of the Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance, under the Financial Management Act 1994 (Vic). In
addition, a quarterly risk status report is presented to the Risk Committee and the Board outlining PoMC's
significant material risks including financial risks. Each risk is reviewed regularly against the risk matrix to
ensure the level of risk is appropriate and the treatment and controls are adequate.
(g) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that PoMC will be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
PoMC manages its liquidity risk to ensure that adequate cash funds are available at all times to meet its
commitments as they arise. This objective is met through:
- sound cash management practices;
- regular identification and monitoring of the maturity profile of liquid assets and liabilities together with
regular cash flow forecasting;
- having sufficient overdraft facilities; and
- investments that are limited to highly liquid and secure assets.
PoMC's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amount of financial liabilities as disclosed in the
Statement of Financial Position. Refer to 25(i) for interest rate risk and financial liability and financial asset
maturity analysis.
The Treasury Corporation of Victoria ensures adequate access to financial markets for PoMC and hence, the
liquidity risk faced by PoMC is not considered significant.
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25 Financial Instruments (continued)
(h) Net fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The net fair value of PoMC’s financial instruments assets and liabilities is determined with reference to
market prices where a market exists or the net present value of expected future cash flows using a discount
factor of the current interest rate applicable to liabilities with a similar risk profile as follows:
Level 1 - the fair value of financial instrument with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices;
Level 2 - the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
financial asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 - the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using unobservable market inputs.
The net fair value of PoMC’s cash and deposits and non-interest bearing financial assets and liabilities is
equal to their carrying value.
Carrying
amount Fair value
2013
2013
$'000
$'000

Notes

Contractual financial assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - Trade receivables

10
11

36,165
33,584
69,749

36,165
33,584
69,749

49,990
18,877
68,867

49,990
18,877
68,867

15
16

54,573
97,074

54,573
97,074

40,018
44,450

40,018
43,214

16

324,041
475,688

365,613
517,260

349,115
433,583

390,888
474,120

Contractual financial liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities

108

Carrying
amount Fair value
2014
2014
$'000
$'000

Comparison between
carrying amount and fair value
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(h) Net fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and
liabilities

Contractual financial assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - Trade receivables
Contractual financial liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities

Notes

Valuation
input

Valuation
technique

10
11

(i)
(i)

Notional amount
Discounted cash flow

36,165
33,584
69,749

15
16

(ii)
(ii)

Discounted cash flow
Discounted cash flow

54,573
97,074

16

(ii)

Discounted cash flow

324,041
475,688

Fair value
2014
$'000

All the above financial assets and liabilities are considered to fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
There has been no change in the fair value hierarchy of the above financial assets and liabilities during the
reporting period.
(i) Counterparty's credit risk is considered to be a significant valuation input. However, considering the
nature of PoMC's financial assets the risk is considered to be very low.
(ii) Credit risk and interest rate risk are considered to be the significant valuation inputs. However,
considering the nature of PoMC's financial liabilities the risks are considered to be very low.
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36,165

Weighted average interest rate

Net financial assets/(liabilities)

36,165
36,165
2.41%

-%

Financial liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities

Weighted average interest rate

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - Trade receivables

(97,074)

97,074
97,074
4.96%

-%

(61,459)

61,459
61,459
6.77%

-%
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(40,643)

40,643
40,643
6.65%

-%

(66,151)

66,151
66,151
6.71%

-%

(13,433)

13,433
13,433
6.66%

-%

(142,355)

142,355
142,355
6.48%

-%

(20,989)

54,573
54,573
-%

33,584
33,584
-%

(405,939)

54,573
421,115
475,688
-%

36,165
33,584
69,749
-%

The exposure to interest rate risks, the effective weighted average interest rates for financial assets and financial liabilities and their maturity profiles at
the reporting date are as follows:
NonFixed interest maturing in:
interest
bearing 1
Floating 1 year or
over 1-2
over 2-3
over 3-4
over 4-5
over 5
year or
Total
interest
less
years
years
years
years
years
less
2014
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000
$'000

(i) Interest rate risk and financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis
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49,990

Weighted average interest rate

Net financial assets/(liabilities)

49,990
49,990
2.66%

-%

Financial liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities

Weighted average interest rate

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - Trade receivables

2013

Floating
interest
$'000

(44,450)

44,450
44,450
6.31%

-%

1 year or
less
$'000

(54,074)

54,074
54,074
6.72%

-%

over 1-2
years
$'000

64

(61,459)

61,459
61,459
6.78%

-%

over 2-3
years
$'000

(40,643)

40,643
40,643
6.67%

-%

over 3-4
years
$'000

Fixed interest maturing in:

(i) Interest rate risk and financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis (continued)
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(66,151)

66,151
66,151
6.72%

-%

over 4-5
years
$'000

(126,788)

126,788
126,788
6.86%

-%

over 5
years
$'000

(21,141)

40,018
40,018
-%

18,877
18,877
-%%

Noninterest
bearing 1
year or
less
$'000

(364,716)

40,018
393,565
433,583
-%

49,990
18,877
68,867
-%

Total
$'000
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26 Contingencies
Contingencies as at 30 June 2014
PoMC is aware of possible contamination in relation to its land. At the certification date of the financial
statements, PoMC is unable to determine the total extent of potential contamination or restoration costs.
PoMC in conjunction with other parties have initiated legal proceedings in the Victorian Supreme Court to
challenge a revaluation of its Port land holdings and an associated increase in its land tax liability. At the
time of signing the Financial Statements, PoMC is unable to assess the probability of success or otherwise
of the challenge.
Management is of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of the above matters, as it is
considered highly improbable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is
not capable of accurate assessment.

27 Assets and liabilities transfers between public sector entities
Year ended 30 June 2014
On 30 June 2014, the Department of State Development, Business and Innovation transferred to PoMC via
the Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure two parcels of land under seabed at
Beacon Cove precinct, Port Melbourne. The value of the land parcels was $724,040. The transfer was
designated as a contribution by owners in accordance with FRD 119A - Transfers through Contributed
Capital .
Year ended 30 June 2013
On 14 December 2012, the then Department of Transport made a $25,000,000 capital contribution to
PoMC.
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2014
$'000

2013
$'000

Capital expenditure commitments
Commitments for the construction and acquisition of infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment, contracted for at balance date but not incurred or
recognised as liabilities
Total capital expenditure commitments

420,787
420,787

27,437
27,437

Intangible asset commitments
Commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets contracted for at balance
date but not incurred or recognised as liabilities
Total intangible asset commitments

-

-

Operating expenditure commitments
Commitments for the payments of operating expenditure excluding lease
commitments contracted for at balance date but not incurred or recognised as
liabilities
Total operating expenditure commitments

45,545
45,545

25,271
25,271

466,332

52,708

Capital expenditure commitments payable
- within one year
- later than one year but not later than five years
- later than five years
Total capital expenditure commitments

275,532
145,255
420,787

27,434
3
27,437

Intangible asset commitments payable
- within one year
- later than one year but not later than five years
- later than five years
Total intangible assets commitments

-

-

36,047
9,498
45,545

10,782
14,345
144
25,271

466,332

52,708

28 Commitments for expenditure
(a) Commitments for expenditure

Total commitments for expenditure
(b) Commitments for expenditure payable

Operating expenditure commitments payable (excluding lease commitments)
- within one year
- later than one year but not later than five years
- later than five years
Total operating expenditure commitments (excluding lease commitments)
Total commitments for expenditure payable
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Notes

2014
$'000

2013
$'000

52,966
186,883
417,562
657,411

53,071
173,626
412,955
639,652

29 Leases
(a) Operating leases
Non-cancellable operating lease receivable (i)
- within one year
- later than one year but not later than five years
- later than five years

PoMC has entered into a number of long and short term leases and preferential berthing licences for land,
buildings and infrastructure. The leases and licences terms range from 1 year and up to 25 years or more
in some cases.
Longer term leases are entered into where PoMC requires the tenant to invest substantial capital to
improve the land and provide infrastructure. Ministerial approval is required for leases with terms greater
than 25 years in duration which includes an option term.
Generally rental income under leases is reviewed to market at two or three yearly intervals. Some leases
provide for annual or bi-annual CPI reviews or an agreed fixed increase.
(i) The leases pertaining to sites being developed under the Port Capacity Project (PoMC as the lessor)
have been excluded as the lease commencement dates and related revenue receivable are contingent
upon the successful delivery of the infrastructure assets under construction.
Non-cancellable operating lease payable
- within one year
- later than one year but not later than five years
- later than five years

3,179
6,963
1,102
11,244

3,174
9,217
502
12,893

PoMC leases various offices and equipment under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within 1 to 6
years. The leases have varying terms that are negotiated on renewal of the leases.
(b) Finance leases
PoMC does not have any finance leases as at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil).
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30 Events occurring after the reporting period
There are no events that have arisen since 30 June 2014 that have significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations, or results, or state of affairs of PoMC.
The 2015 Financial Statements will be materially impacted by the progress of PoMC’s Port Capacity
Project.
By way of background, in April 2012, the Victorian Government announced PoMC’s Port Capacity Project
which includes the redevelopment of the Webb Dock precinct. The works at Webb Dock centre on the
creation of a new international container terminal, a world class automotive terminal and a dedicated
‘on–dock’ automotive pre-delivery inspection (PDI) hub.
As at the date of this report, the international container terminal, automotive terminal and the PDI hub
operators have been appointed following a competitive bidding process. In addition, construction for the
marine and roads and services work packages has commenced at Webb Dock and is scheduled for
completion in 2017.

31 Related party transactions
The Victorian State Government prepares consolidated financial statements relating to its controlled
entities. For the purpose of preparing the State Government's Annual Financial Report (AFR), transactions
which PoMC has undertaken with other State Government controlled entities will be eliminated in the
State Government's AFR.
The aggregate amounts of PoMC's transactions conducted during the year and its assets and liabilities at
the end of the year which relate to State Government controlled entities are as follows:
2014
$'000

2013
$'000

27

929
14,621
28,851
76,429
43,728
38,324
35,665
428,158
-

1,738
8,632
31,492
75,000
29,737
61,880
43,608
402,975
25,000

27

725

-

Notes
Operating revenue
Operating expenses
Finance charges
Port Licence Fee
Dividend paid
Income tax paid
Assets
Liabilities
Capital contribution from the then Department of Transport
Capital contribution from the Department of Transport, Planning and
Local Infrastructure
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2014
$'000

2013
$'000

20(b)

72,755

65,904

4
4

73,616
1,695

75,814
(420)

34,316
(229)
(318)
(48,800)
(2,370)
(6,184)
478
216
5,506
130,681

35,059
2,972
3,305
(19,449)
(25,564)
(11,353)
(9,650)
149
(600)
116,167

Notes
32 Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities
Profit for the year
Non‑cash movements in income and expense
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss/(gain) on sale of non-current assets
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in receivables
(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets
(Increase)/decrease in other operating assets
(Decrease) in payables
(Decrease) in provision for income taxes payable
(Decrease) in deferred tax liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in current provisions
Increase in non current provisions
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Net cash inflow from operating activities
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Certification of financial statements
Port of Melbourne Corporation
Certification of financial statements
30 June 2014
We certify that the attached financial statements for Port of Melbourne Corporation has been prepared in
accordance with the Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994 (Vic), applicable
Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards, including Interpretations and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements.
We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating Statement,
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to and
forming part of the financial statements, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30
June 2014 and financial position of the Port of Melbourne Corporation as at 30 June 2014.
The financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included
in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on 18 August 2014.

Mr M Birrell
Chairman
18 August 2014

Mr N Easy
Chief Executive Officer
18 August 2014

Mr M O'Meara
General Manager Finance
18 August 2014
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